
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

4. ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO AGENDA 

5. DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

6. CONSENT AGENDA: 

A. Approval of Minutes – January 2, 2018 

B. Disbursements 

   1.   General Operations Disbursement Claim No. 17-23 $161,990.80 

   2.   Liquor Fund Disbursement Claim No. 17-24 $229,482.55 

C. Statement of Fund Balance/Budget to Date – December 2017 

D. Resolution 18-01 Authorizing Fund Closures and Transfers 

E. Resolution 18-03 Resolution Denying Therapeutic Massage Individual License 

F. Dedication of Terrace East Field to Don Busch 

G. Approval of Statement of Values Policy 

H. Approval of Dover Kennel Animal Control Contract 

I. Contractor’s Licenses 

J. Business License – Massage Therapy 

K. Correspondence 

7. PRESENTATION 

A. Volunteer Appreciation Awards for Beyond the Yellow Ribbon Volunteers 

8. POLICE REPORT 

9. PARKS AND RECREATION REPORT 

10. ORDINANCES AND/OR RESOLUTIONS 

A. Resolution 18-02 Approving Hy-Vee First Addition of Spring Lake Park Plat 

11. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Approval of Liquor License Application – Sota Tap House and Grill  

B.  Authorize Plans for 2018 Sewer Lining Project 

C.  Authorize Purchase and Order of 2018 Police Squad 

D.  Authorize Purchase and Order of 2018 Police Chief and Investigator Vehicles 

E.  Approval of Site Development Agreement – Hy-Vee 

F.  Approval of Utility and Sidewalk Access and Maintenance Agreement 

12. ENGINEER’S REPORT 

13. ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

14. REPORTS 

A. Administrator Reports 

15. OTHER 

16. ADJOURN 

 

SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR RULES FOR PUBLIC HEARING  

AND DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

TUESDAY, JANUARY 16, 2018 

7:00 P.M. 

 
 



RULES FOR DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

 

DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

 

 Discussion from the floor is limited to three minutes per person.  Longer presentations 

must be scheduled through the Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer’s office. 

 

 Individuals wishing to be heard must sign in with their name and address.  Meetings are 

video recorded so individuals must approach the podium and speak clearly into the 

microphone. 

 

 Council action or discussion should not be expected during “Discussion from the Floor.”  

Council may direct staff to research the matter further or take the matter under 

advisement for action at the next regularly scheduled meeting. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

The purpose of a public hearing is to allow the City Council to receive citizen input on a 

proposed project.  This is not a time to debate the issue. 

 

The following format will be used to conduct the hearing: 

 

 The presenter will have a maximum of 10 minutes to explain the project as proposed. 

 

 Councilmembers will have the opportunity to ask questions or comment on the proposal. 

 

 Citizens will then have an opportunity to ask questions and/or comment on the project.  

Those wishing the comment are asked to limit their comments to 3 minutes.  In cases 

where there is a spokesperson representing a group wishing to have their collective 

opinions voiced, the spokesperson should identify the audience group he/she is 

representing and may have a maximum of 10 minutes to express the views of the group. 

 

 People wishing to comment are asked to keep their comments succinct and specific. 

 

 Following public input, Councilmembers will have a second opportunity to ask questions 

of the presenter and/or citizens. 

 

 After everyone wishing to address the subject of the hearing has done so, the Mayor will 

close the public hearing. 

 

 The City Council may choose to take official action on the proposal or defer action until 

the next regularly scheduled Council meeting.  No further public input will be received at 

that time. 



  OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 

 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, the regularly scheduled meeting of the Spring Lake Park City Council 

was held on January 2, 2018 at the Spring Lake Park Community Center, 1301 81st Avenue N.E., at 7:00 P.M. 

 

1.  Call to Order 

 

Mayor Hansen called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 

 

2. Roll Call    

 

Members Present: Councilmembers Nelson, Wendling, Delfs, Goodboe-Bisschoff and Mayor Hansen 

   

Members Absent: None 

 

Staff Present: Police Chief Ebeltoft; Public Works Director Randall; Building Official Brainard; 

Engineer Gravel; Administrator Buchholtz and Executive Assistant Gooden 

 

Visitors: Olivia Alveshere, ABC Newspaper 

 Ray McManus, Ham Lake, MN 

 Shawn McManus, Ham Lake, MN 

   

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

4.  Additions or Corrections to Agenda  

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that an updated copy of the 2018 Appointment list was provided to the 

Council.  He noted that a change was made to effective dates and an addition of a previously appointed Parks 

and Recreation Commission member to the list. 

 

5.  Discussion From The Floor - None 

 

6.  Consent Agenda: 

 

Mayor Hansen reviewed the following Consent Agenda items: 

 

A. Approval of Work Session Minutes – December 11, 2017 

B. Approval of Minutes – December 18, 2017 

C. Contractor’s Licenses 

D. Business License - Massage 

E. Correspondence 

 

Mayor Hansen asked that a correction be made to the Call to Order on the December 11, 2017 minutes, as she 

was not in attendance.  Councilmember Delfs noted that the date needed correcting. The changes were noted. 

 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER WENDLING TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA WITH 

CORRECTIONS MENTIONED. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

 

 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 2 January 2, 2018 

 

7.  Public Works Report 

 

Public Works Director Randall reported that the Public Works Department has been preparing the ice rinks and 

warming houses; continue to collect the garbage and recycling at the parks, and work on repairs to the 

equipment.  He reported that the Department plowed and salted twice in the month of December. He reported 

that the warming houses opened on December 26, 2017. 

 

Mr. Randall reported that there were two water main breaks in December. He stated that there was water 

damage to the interior of one home as a result of one the breaks. He stated that the League of Minnesota 

Insurance Trust (LMCIT) has been informed and it will be up to the homeowners insurance and the LMCIT 

insurance to work out the specifics of the claim. 

 

Mr. Randall reported all the water meters have been read with the exception of 55, which require a new radio 

or meter repair. He stated that the City has been given a 10-year extension by the DNR on its wellhead 

protection plan.  

 

Mayor Hansen thanked the Public Works Department for their many talents they offer to the City.  

 

8. Code Enforcement Report 

 

Building Official Brainard reported that he attended the Council meetings on December 4 and December 18; a 

Department Head meeting on December 5; the Minnesota Building Technician Association meeting on 

December 7; and the North Suburban Code Official’s meeting on December 19.  

 

Mr. Brainard stated that in 2107, a total of 250 building permits were issued compared to 268 in 2016.  He 

reported that the total valuation for 2017 of $31,066,551.75 compared to $7,877,263.86 in 2016 indicates a 

254% increase.   He noted the total building permit revenue for 2018 of $309,459.72 compared to $116,519.63 

in 2016, shows a 266% increase.  He noted that with two projects ready for plan review starting in January 

2018; it gives an indication that 2018 will be a very busy year for the Code Enforcement Department. 

 

Mr. Brainard reported that revenues for the Code Enforcement Department in 2017 have exceeded revenue 

budget projections by 265%.  He stated that the expenditure budget for 2017 was set at $165,735.00 while 

revenue generated through building, plumbing, mechanical, plan reviews, certificate of occupancies, 

vacant/foreclosure properties, and rentals totaled $439,825.39. 

 

Mr. Brainard reported that the December 2017 vacancy listing shows that there are 15 vacant/foreclosed 

residential properties currently posted and/or soon posted by the Code Enforcement Department, which is down 

two from last month. There are two vacant/foreclosed commercial property, which is remains the same from 

last month; and six residential properties currently occupied and ready for Sheriff Sale redemption, which 

remains the same last month.  He reported that he posted one abandoned and/or vacant property notice in month 

of December and conducted two certificate of occupancy inspections; in addition, no Administrative Offense 

Tickets were issued by the Code Enforcement Department.  

 

Mr. Brainard thanked Kristine Pearson and Nancy Kelm for their assistance to the Code Enforcement 

Department this past year. Administrator Buchholtz also thanked Executive Assistant Gooden for her assistance 

with the Administrative Citation process. 

 

Mr. Brainard stated that one of the challenges for the Code Enforcement Department will include addressing 

the inspection demand for the Legends of Spring Lake Park, plan review and inspections for upcoming 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 3 January 2, 2018 

 

construction projects and maintaining current services for rental and nuisance inspections.  

 

Mr. Brainard provided an update on the construction of the Legends of Spring Lake Park and showed the 

Council samples of some the materials from the construction site.  

 

9.  New Business 

 

A.  2018 Appointments 

 

Administrator Buchholtz presented the 2018 appointments to the City Council. Mayor Hansen inquired if the 

Councilmembers had reviewed the appointments and if there were any objections to the appointments.  

 

Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff stated that she was not appointed to as many commissions as she had in 

the past year.  She inquired if she could be placed as an alternate member of the Trunk Highway 65 Corridor 

Coalition.  Mayor Hansen stated that she could not and she would be willing to discuss Councilmember 

Goodboe-Bisschoff appointments with her at a later time. 

 

Mayor Hansen reminded the Councilmembers that if they are not appointed to a certain committee, they should 

not attend the meeting as their attendance could create a quorum and violate the open meeting law.  

 

Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff inquired if Councilmembers could attend various meetings as private 

resident of the City even if they are not speaking at the meeting. Attorney Thames stated that with a five member 

Council, if three Councilmembers are present at a meeting, gathering or event, it creates a quorum and this 

creates an environment where city business could possibly be discussed or shared.  

 

Administrator Buchholtz reminded the Councilmembers and the residents that the Planning Commission 

meetings are televised and can be viewed from home. He reminded the Councilmembers that should decide to 

attend any meeting; he will need be made aware of their attendance ahead of time, so that a quorum notice can 

be prepared and posted for the event or meeting. 

 

MOTION MADE BY COUNCILMEMBER HANSEN TO APPROVE 2018 APPOINTMENTS. ROLL 

CALL VOTE: COUNCILMEMBERS NELSON, WENDLING, DELFS AND MAYOR HANSEN- AYES; 

COUNCILMEMBER GOODBOE-BISSCHOFF - NAY. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

B.  Approval of Tenant Lease (8466 Central Avenue NE) 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that RS Properties Corporation desires to enter into a lease with the City of 

Spring Lake Park to operate a bar/restaurant at 8466 Central Avenue NE. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the City Attorney has drafted the lease on behalf of the City.  He 

reviewed the following highlights of the lease: 

 

 The lease is a five lease with the option for a five-year renewal. 

 The monthly rent for the first five-year term is $5,600/month, triple net.  The monthly rent for the 

second five-year term increases to $7,000/month, triple net.  The tenant is responsible for payment of 

property taxes, property insurance, and general building maintenance. 

 One month’s rent is required as a damage deposit. 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 4 January 2, 2018 

 

 Tenant will receive three month’s rent free, which will cover the buildout time for the new 

bar/restaurant concept. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated that the lease is similar to the original lease executed between the City and 

PNN Café, Inc. He stated the lease would have an effective date of January 15, 2018 being contingent on the 

successful issuing of the liquor license at the January 16, 2018 Council meeting. 

 

Ray McManus reported that the plan for the new restaurant/bar would be simple concept offering a variety of 

lunch and dinner options with breakfast offerings on the weekends.  He stated that he will be active in the 

community and will offer charitable gambling benefiting the local charities.  He explained to the Council that 

he owns three well known establishments currently. He noted that he and Shawn McManus have both been 

successful in the restaurant business and want to keep a hometown feel to new restaurant. 

 

Councilmember Wendling inquired if the new restaurant will have the same feel and atmosphere as the other 

restaurants owned by Mr. McManus.  Mr. McManus stated that it will be a bit more upscale offering healthy 

options but other have the ability to have specialty items on the menu and has plans of the lower level to be 

refurbished and events to be held. 

 

Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff inquired as what the hours of operation will be of the new restaurant.  Mr. 

McManus stated that they are not set yet but more than likely will open at 10:00 AM and remain open until 

midnight or later. 

 

Mr. Brainard inquired if there would any remodeling taking place. Mr. McManus stated that there will not any 

structural remodeling.  He stated that he hopes to have the remodeling completed as soon as possible for very 

little down time. 

 

The Council welcomed the McManus’ to the community and wished them good luck with the new business. 

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN TO APPROVE TENANT LEASE AT 8466 CENTRAL AVENUE 

NE. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

C.  Consideration of Amendment to City’s Investment Policy 

 

Administrator Buchholtz provided proposed revisions to the City’s investment policy and noted that there are 

two changes.  He stated that first is to expand the amount of funds that are pooled for investment purposes. He 

noted that this reflects current practice, as the City currently pools liquor store funds with the other city funds 

for investment purposes.  He stated that the second change is to require an investment report to be distributed 

to the City Council on a quarterly basis, rather than semi-annually which also reflects current practice. 

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN TO APPROVE AMENDMENT TO CITY’S INVESTMENT 

POLICY. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

12.  Engineer’s Report 

 

Engineer Gravel had no new items to report. 

 

13.  Attorney’s Report 

 

Attorney Thames had no new items to report. 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 5 January 2, 2018 

 

14.  Reports  

 

A. Beyond the Yellow Ribbon Report  

 

Councilmember Nelson reported that the Beyond the Yellow Ribbon organization will be working with the 

National Guard to distribute funds to the families who are in need.  He reported that the local Holiday gas 

station will be assisting in the collection of the cards and distribution.  He stated that the volunteers who have 

helped the Beyond the Yellow Ribbon organization will be recognized at the next City Council meeting on 

January 16, 2018. 

 

Councilmember Nelson reported that there is the possibility in the new year of hosting two dinners a month. 

He encouraged residents to volunteer and to continue to attend the monthly dinners. 

 

15.  Other 

 

A.  Administrator Reports 

 

Administrator Buchholtz thanked the Councilmembers who attended the Employee Recognition/Christmas 

party in December. He noted that the employees appreciated the Councilmembers being present. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz thanked Public Works Director Randall and Public Works employees, specifically 

Ken Prokott, for assisting with the water main breaks that have occurred after their normal working hours.  He 

thanked the Department for their hard work and dedication.  

 

16.  Adjourn 

 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER WENDLING TO ADJOURN. VOICE VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION 

CARRIED. 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:45 P.M. 

              

       __________________________________ 

       Cindy Hansen, Mayor  

Attest: 

 

__________________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 





Date: Dec 2017

Page:  1 

Claim Res.#17-23

VOUCHER VENDOR DESCRIPTION  AMOUNT 

        63636 AISHAH ALAMIN RECREATION REFUND 39.00                     

        63637 ANOKA COUNTY AMENDED LEASE AGREEMENT 92.00                     

        63638 ANOKA COUNTY PICTOMETRY FLIGHT 843.50                   

        63639 AT & T MOBILITY MONTHLY SERVICES 1,016.95                

        63640 BATTERIES PLUS BULBS BATTERIES 80.85                     

        63641 BOBBIE JOHNSON RECREATION REFUND 70.00                     

        63642 CARSON, CLELLAND & SCHREDER LEGAL SERVICES 10,495.47             

        63643 CENTERPOINT ENERGY MONTHLY UTILITIES 1,302.79                

        63644 COTTENS INC PARTS 321.33                   

        63645 ECM PUBLISHERS, INC. PUBLISHING 215.00                   

        63646 G & K SERVICES MATS 81.88                     

        63647 G & N ENTERPRISES SUPPLIES 227.00                   

        63648 GOPHER STATE ONE-CALL INC LOCATES 71.55                     

        63649 IIMC REGION VI REGISTRATION 115.00                   

        63650 INNOVATIVE OFFICE SOLUTIONS LLC SUPPLIES 80.86                     

        63651 INSTRUMENTAL RESEARCH INC TOTAL COLIFORM BACTERIA 72.00                     

        63652 KRISTIN O'CONNELL RECREATION REFUND 39.00                     

        63653 LEANN & LAWRENCE DOREMUS OVERPAYMENT WATER BILL 200.28                   

        63654 LIBERTY TITLE INC. OVERPAYMENT WATER BILL 6.69                       

        63655 MANSFIELD OIL COMPANY FUEL 1,973.11                

        63656 MCCLELLAN SALES INC SUPPLIES/BATTERIES 289.00                   

        63657 QUILL SUPPLIES 91.46                     

        63658 SLP FIRE DEPARTMENT FIRE PROTECTION 17,288.00             

        63659 TASC ADMIN FEES 30.08                     

        63660 THE HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES MONTHLY CREDIT CARD 23.22                     

        63661 VISU-SEWER INC ENGINEERING FEES 18,012.00             

        63662 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF WI-MN MONTHLY SERVICES 7,023.38                

        63663 AFLAC PAYROLL 22.17                     

        63664 CENTRAL PENSION FUND PAYROLL 260.04                   

        63665 DEARBORN NATIONAL PAYROLL 413.41                   

        63666 DELTA DENTAL PAYROLL 1,617.56                

        63667 FIDELITY SECURITY LIFE PAYROLL 31.35                     

        63668 HEALTH PARTNERS PAYROLL 11,944.84             

        63669 L.E.L.S. PAYROLL 245.00                   

        63670 LOCAL 49 PAYROLL 103.50                   

        63671 NCPERS MINNESOTA-7750811 PAYROLL 56.00                     

        63672 ALPHA VIDEO AND AUDIO INC SONY CAMERA 6,467.00                

        63673 BATTERIES PLUS BULBS BATTERIES 134.73                   

        63674 BERKLEY ADMINISTRATORS CLAIM 290.59                   

        63675 BLAINE LOCK & SAFE INC SERVICES 204.50                   

        63676 BUILD BY DESIGN ESCROW REFUND 107.00                   

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

CLAIMS LIST APPROVED AND PAID

GENERAL OPERATIONS



Date: Dec 2017

Page:  2 

Claim Res.#17-23

VOUCHER VENDOR DESCRIPTION  AMOUNT 

        63677 CENTERPOINT ENERGY MONTHLY UTILITIES 956.88                   

        63678 CHAMPION YOUTH RECREATION INSTRUCTOR 1,591.80                

        63679 CHRISTINE SINGH RECREATION REFUND 6.00                       

        63680 COMCAST MONTHLY SERVICES 115.42                   

        63681 COMMERS PRINTING INC SUPPLIES 337.35                   

        63682 CONNEXUS ENERGY MONTHLY UTILITIES 327.27                   

        63683 COORDINATED BUSINESS SYSTEMS LTDMAINTENCE CONTRACT 1,175.44                

        63684 CORE & MAIN LP SINGLE WIRED UNIT/TOUCHREADER 15,608.70             

        63685 COTTENS INC PARTS 15.99                     

        63686 ECM PUBLISHERS, INC. PUBLISHING 344.13                   

        63687 FERGUSON WATERWORKS #2516 PARTS 2,517.68                

        63688 FLEETPRIDE PARTS 629.22                   

        63689 G & K SERVICES MATS 81.88                     

        63690 GREEN LIGHTS RECYCLING INC RECYCLING EVENT 2,051.45                

        63691 IKUMI MIURA RECREATION REFUND 6.00                       

        63692 JOHN VANDERMYDE RECREATION REFUND 6.00                       

        63693 KERRY CASEY RECREATION REFUND 30.00                     

        63694 MANSFIELD OIL COMPANY FUEL 748.76                   

        63695 JILL MASON RECREATION INSTRUCTOR 250.00                   

        63696 METROPOLITAN COUNCIL SAC DEFERRAL FOR MINNSPROUTS 830.79                   

        63697 MUNICIPAL PAVING PLANT ASPHALT MIX 112.30                   

        63698 KAY OKEY REIMBURSEMENT 105.87                   

        63699 S&P GLOBAL RATINGS ANALYTICAL SERVICES RENDERED 9,025.00                

        63700 SHARON KLEVEN RECREATION REFUND 122.00                   

        63701 SHELLY TORNIAINEN RECREATION REFUND 6.00                       

        63702 TRUST IN US, LLC DRUG TESTING 250.00                   

        63703 TWIN CITIES BMEU WEST POSTAGE 850.00                   

        63704 XCEL ENERGY MONTHLY UTILITIES 11,498.45             

        63705 ASPEN MILLS UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 555.80                   

        63706 BATTERIES PLUS BULBS BATTERIES 14.99                     

        63707 CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK LADDIE LAKE FINAL WATER BILL 10,903.51             

        63708 CITY OF ST. PAUL TRAINING 165.00                   

        63709 COMM-WORKS, LLC MONTHLY SERVICES 125.00                   

        63710 COON RAPIDS CHRYSLER AUTO SERVICES 18.53                     

        63711 COORDINATED BUSINESS SYSTEMS LTDMAINTENCE AGREEMENT 798.30                   

        63712 COTTENS INC SUPPLIES 51.48                     

        63713 DAVE CHLEBECK UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 74.98                     

        63714 DOUGLAS EBELTOFT UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 690.75                   

        63715 EMERGENCY AUTOMOTIVE TECHNOLOGIESAUTO SERVICES 170.00                   

        63716 MICHAEL LEDMAN RECREATION INSTRUCTOR 480.00                   

        63717 MCCLELLAN SALES INC PARTS 149.00                   

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

CLAIMS LIST APPROVED AND PAID

GENERAL OPERATIONS



Date: Dec 2017

Page:  3 

Claim Res.#17-23

VOUCHER VENDOR DESCRIPTION  AMOUNT 

        63718 MENARDS-CAPITAL ONE COMMERICALMONTHLY CREDIT CARD 312.37                   

        63720 OFFICE OF MN.IT SERVICES MONTHLY FIBER OPTICS 46.40                     

        63721 PERFECT 10 QUICK LUBE AUTO SERVICES 39.95                     

        63722 RICHFIELD BUS CO RECREATION BUS SERVICES 659.50                   

        63723 TRUST IN US, LLC DRUG TESTING 175.00                   

        63724 ANDY JENNINGS OVERPAYMENT WATER BILL 173.60                   

        63725 AFLAC PAYROLL 22.17                     

        63726 CENTRAL PENSION FUND PAYROLL 260.04                   

        63727 DEARBORN NATIONAL PAYROLL 506.71                   

        63728 DELTA DENTAL PAYROLL 1,617.56                

        63729 FIDELITY SECURITY LIFE PAYROLL 31.35                     

        63730 HEALTH PARTNERS PAYROLL 11,944.84             

        63731 L.E.L.S. PAYROLL 245.00                   

        63732 LOCAL 49 PAYROLL 103.50                   

        63733 NCPERS MINNESOTA-7750811 PAYROLL 56.00                     
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 161,990.80           

GENERAL OPERATIONS

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

CLAIMS LIST APPROVED AND PAID



  Date: Dec. 2017

  Page:  4

  Claim Res.#17-23

WHEREAS,

      the City Council of the City of Spring Lake Park has considered the foregoing itemized list of 

disbursements; and

WHEREAS,

      the City Council has determined that all disbursements, as listed, with the following exceptions:

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

are proper.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED:

       that the City Council directs and approves the payment of the aforementioned disbursements 

this _________ day of _______________, 20_______.

Signed: ______________________________________

               Mayor

Councilmembers:

____________________________________       ____________________________________

____________________________________        ____________________________________

ATTEST:

_____________________________________

Daniel Buchholtz, Admin/Clerk-Treasurer











FUND DESCRIPTION BALANCE
101 GENERAL 1,659,688.20$       
102 ELECTIONS 63,672.05$            
103 POLICE RESERVES 2,554.55$              
104 NORTH CENTRAL SUBURBAN CABLE (615.51)$                
108 POLICE FORFEITURES 16,455.21$            
112 ESCROW TRUST 139,990.23$          
115 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 13,305.71$            
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
224 SMALL EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT 17,710.87$            
225 PARK ACQUISITION & IMPROVEMENTS 593,700.78$          
226 PARK EQUIPMENT & IMPROVEMENTS 11,110.54$            
227 HRA EXCESS 239,975.82$          
229 SANBURNOL PARK IMPROVEMENTS 15,902.69$            
230 RECYCLING 42,984.04$            
234 STREET LIGHTING 28,103.73$            
235 RIGHT-OF-WAY MAINTENANCE 1,853.22$              
237 PARK & RECREATION SPECIAL PROJECTS 18,178.75$            
238 GRANTS & SPECIAL PROJECTS 1,721.13$              
240 TOWER DAYS 11,365.91$            
243 PUBLIC SAFETY RADIO REPLACEMENT 7,738.06$              
244 RECREATION PROGRAMS 352,198.68$          
248 TRAFFIC EDUCATION 63,751.39$            
249 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 5,633.77$              
250 ANIMAL CONTROL 2,011.31$              
251 FORESTRY 350.00$                  
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
304 2016A NORTH METRO CABLE BOND DEBT SERVICE -$                        
313 2011A FIRE EQUIPMENT BOND-DEBT SERVICE 4,147.08$              
328 2013B PUBLIC WORKS BUILDING-DEBT SERVICE 34,487.50$            
329 2013A EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATE-DEBT SERVICE 159,476.71$          
330 2014A G.O. IMPROVEMENT-DEBT SERVICE (2014-15 ST PRJ) 887,806.55$          
331 2017A G.O. EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATE-SLP FIRE 21,266.86$            
332 2018A G.O. EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATE-DEBT SERVICE (9,025.00)$             
384 2013A (Refi 2005A) FIRE DEPARTMENT-DEBT SERVICE 57,686.09$            
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
400 REVOLVING CONSTRUCTION 813,117.75$          
402 MSA MAINTENANCE 49,212.19$            
403 CAPITAL REPLACEMENT 378,185.37$          
407 SEALCOATING 29,952.84$            
410 LAKESIDE/LIONS PARK IMPROVEMENT 21,891.68$            
416 BUILDING MAINTENANCE & RENEWAL 121,279.84$          
421 81ST AVE REHAB-MSA 122,775.93$          
425 STORM SEWER REHAB 179,250.43$          
427 ABLE ST & TERRACE RD IMPROVEMENTS 160,325.90$          
429 2013 EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATE 6,644.04$              
430 2014-2015 STREET IMPROVEMENT PRJ 471,424.93$          
431 2017A G.O. EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATE-SLP FIRE 203,772.26$          
432 2018A G.O. EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATE-DEBT SERVICE 125,000.00$          
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
600 PUBLIC UTILITY RENEWAL & REPLACEMENT 1,983,316.04$       
601 PUBLIC UTILITY OPERATIONS 960,939.90$          
602 WATER TREATMENT PLANT 589,852.45$          
609 MUNICIPAL LIQUOR 212,387.95$          
610 ON-SALE NOTE PROCEEDS 519,105.67$          
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
700 SEVERANCE 30,274.62$            

GRAND TOTAL 11,443,896.71$    

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
STATEMENT OF FUND BALANCE

12/31/2017 UNAUDITED

































 
Memorandum 
To:   Mayor Hansen and Members of the City Council 

From:  Daniel R. Buchholtz, MMC, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

Date:  January 9, 2018 

Subject: Project Fund Closures and Transfers 
 
Whenever the City does a significant project, such as a road improvement, it establishes a fund to 
track revenues and expenditures associated with that project.  When the project is complete, it has 
been the City’s past practice to close the fund and transfer the remaining assets to either debt 
service funds or other capital project funds. 
 
Two projects with funds, the Able Street and Terrace Road Improvements (Fund 427) and the 81st 
Avenue Rehabilitation project (Fund 421), are complete.  Staff recommends closing those funds 
and transferring those assets to the Revolving Construction Fund (Fund 400).  This is consistent 
with City Council policy. 
 
The most recent project, the 2014-2015 Street Improvement Project, is substantially complete.  
Staff is recommending that the City Council transfer $400,000 from that fund to the Fund 330, 
the project debt service fund.  The remaining funds (approximately $70,000) will be transferred to 
the Fund 330 once the project is final, likely later in 2018. 
 
Finally, the 2011A Fire Equipment Bond is paid off.  Staff recommends closing this fund and 
transferring it to the Capital Replacement Fund (Fund 403). 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution 18-01, which achieves the above stated fund closures 
and transfers.  The effective date of the Resolution is December 31, 2017. 
 
If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to contact me at 763-784-6491. 
 





RESOLUTION NO. 18-01 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING FUND CLOSURES AND TRANSFERS 

 

 WHEREAS, capital projects for the Able Street and Terrace Road Improvements (Fund 

427) and the 81st Avenue Rehabilitation (Fund 421) are complete; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the 2014-2015 Street Improvement Project is substantially complete; and 

 

 WHEREAS, 2011A Fire Equipment Bond has been paid off; and 

 

 WHEREAS, City policy calls for excess dollars from capital projects to be deposited into 

the Revolving Construction Fund, if there is no debt service associated with the project; and 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring 

Lake Park that the Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer is hereby authorized to make the transfers 

specified below: 

  

1. Close Fund 421 (81st Avenue Rehab) and transfer assets to Fund 400 (Revolving 

Construction). 

2. Close Fund 427 (Able Street and Terrace Road Improvements) and transfer assets to 

Fund 400 (Revolving Construction). 

3. Transfer $400,000 from Fund 430 (2014-2015 Street Improvement Project) to Fund 

330 (2014A GO Improvement- Debt Service). 

4. Close Fund 313 (2011 Fire Equipment Bond – Debt Service) and transfer funds to Fund 

403 (Capital Replacement Fund). 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the effective date of the transfers is December 31, 

2017. 

 

 

The foregoing Resolution was moved for adoption by. 

 

Upon Vote being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof:  . 

 

And the following voted against the same:   

  

 

  



 

Whereon the Mayor declared said Resolution duly passed and adopted the 16th day of January, 

2018. 

 

 

APPROVED BY: 

 

___________________________________ 

Cindy Hansen, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, City Administrator  



RESOLUTION NO. 18-03 

 

RESOLUTION DENYING THERAPEUTIC MASSAGE INDIVIDUAL LICENSE 

 

WHEREAS, Guangxiu Gao. (the “Applicant”) has submitted an application for a 

therapeutic massage individual license; and 

 

WHEREAS, a background check was completed on the applicant; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the applicant does not qualify for a therapeutic 

massage individual license under Section 119.09 of the City Code due to the fact that the 

background check found that the individual is not of good moral character or repute. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring Lake 

Park that the City Council does hereby deny the therapeutic massage individual license 

application for Guangxiu Gao. 

 

 

 

The foregoing Resolution was moved for adoption by . 

 

Upon Vote being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof:   

 

And the following voted against the same:   

 

  

 

Whereon the Mayor declared said Resolution duly passed and adopted the 16th day of January, 

2018. 

 

 

APPROVED BY: 

 

___________________________________ 

Cindy Hansen, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, City Administrator 

 





 
Memorandum 
To:   Mayor Hansen and Members of the City Council 

From:  Daniel R. Buchholtz, MMC, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

Date:  January 11, 2018 

Subject: Dedication of Terrace East Field to Don Busch 
 
This past December, the City received a request from the family of Don Busch to rename the 
Terrace East ballfield after former Clerk/Treasurer Don Busch.  The City Council asked the Parks 
and Recreation Commission to review the request.    
 
The Commission, during their December and January meetings, discussed the request.  While they 
found that renaming the field after Don Busch would not comply with the City’s park naming 
policy, they gave support to the idea of dedicating the Terrace East ballfield in honor of Don 
Busch and placing a plaque on the field backstop honoring Don Busch’s service to the City. 
 
If the request is approved, the dedication would occur during Tower Days weekend. 
 
Recommended Motion:  Motion to accept the recommendation of the Parks and Recreation 
Commission to dedicate the Terrace East ballfield in honor of Don Busch, authorize staff to order 
said plaque for installation, and to authorize staff to schedule the dedication of the field during 
Tower Days weekend. 
 
If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to contact me at 763-784-6491. 





 
Memorandum 
To:   Mayor Hansen and Members of the City Council 

From:  Daniel R. Buchholtz, MMC, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

Date:  January 11, 2018 

Subject: Statement of Values Policy 
 
At your work session on January 8, 2018, the City Council discussed a statement of values to 
promote and maintain the highest standards of personal and professional conduct in the 
governance of Spring Lake Park.  Based on that discussion, staff is presenting the attached 
Statement of Values for adoption by the City Council. 
 
We did add a value example under “I’m conscientious,” stating that it is an expectation that each 
of you actively listen to the discussions and presentations taking place during the City Council 
meetings and will present your opinions in a respectful and construction 
 
If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to contact me at 763-784-6491. 
 
 



  



City of Spring Lake Park 

Statement of Values 
 

Preamble: 

 

The proper operation of democratic government requires that decision-makers be independent, 

impartial and accountable to the people they serve.  The City of Spring Lake Park has adopted 

this Statement of Values to promote and maintain the highest standards of personal and 

professional conduct in the City’s government.  All elected and appointed officials are required 

to subscribe to this statement, understand how it applies to their specific responsibilities and 

practice its 9 core values in their work.  Because we seek public confidence in the City’s services 

and public trust of its decision-makers, our decisions and our work must meet the most 

demanding ethical standards and demonstrate the highest levels of achievement in following this 

statement. 

 

The Values: 

 

As a representative of the City of Spring Lake Park,  

1. I serve the public interest. 

2. I fulfill the duties and responsibilities of holding public office. 

3. I am ethical. 

4. I am professional. 

5. I am fiscally responsible. 

6. I am conscientious. 

7. I communicate effectively. 

8. I am collaborative. 

9. I am forward thinking. 

 

Value examples/expressions: 

 

1. I serve the public interest. In practice this value means that: 

a. I provide courteous, equitable, and prompt service to everyone.  

b. I am attuned to, and care about, the needs and issues of citizens, public officials, and 

city workers.  

c. I am interested, engaged, and responsive in my interactions with constituents. 

d. I recognize and support the public’s right to know the public’s business. 

 

 

2. I fulfill the duties and responsibilities of holding public office. In practice this value 

means that: 

a. I observe the highest standards of integrity in my official acts and undertake my 

responsibilities for the benefit of the greater public good. 

b. I faithfully discharge the duties of my office regardless of my personal 

considerations, recognizing that the public interest is my primary concern.  



c. I uphold the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of 

Minnesota and carry out impartially the laws of the nation, state, and municipality 

and thus foster respect for all government.  

d. I comply with both the letter and the spirit of the laws and policies affecting 

operations of the City.  

e. I recognize my obligation to implement the adopted goals and objectives of the City 

in good faith, regardless of my personal views.  

f. I conduct myself in both my official and personal actions in a manner that is above 

reproach.  

g. I do not use my position to secure for myself or others special privileges or 

exemptions that are different from those available to the general public.  

h. I understand and abide by the respective roles and responsibilities of elected and 

appointed officials and city staff and will not undermine them in their work.  

i. I am independent, impartial, and fair in my judgment and actions.   

 

3. I am ethical. In practice this value means that: 

a. I am trustworthy, acting with the utmost integrity and moral courage.  

b. I am truthful, do what I say I will do, and am reliable. 

c. I am accountable for my actions and behavior and accept responsibility for my 

decisions.  

d. I make impartial decisions, free of influence from unlawful gifts, narrow political 

interests, and financial and other personal interests that impair my independence of 

judgment or action.  

e. I am fair, distributing benefits and burdens according to consistent and equitable 

criteria.  

f. I oppose all forms of harassment and unlawful discrimination.   

g. I extend equal opportunities and due process to all parties in matters under 

consideration.  

h. I show respect for confidences and confidential information.  

i. I avoid giving the appearance of impropriety and of using my position for personal 

gain.  

 

4. I am professional. In practice this value means that: 

a. I apply my knowledge and expertise to my assigned activities and to the interpersonal 

relationships that are part of my job in a consistent, confident, competent, and 

productive manner.  

b. I approach my job and work-related relationships with a positive attitude, contributing 

to a supportive, respectful, and non-threatening work environment.  

c. I keep my professional knowledge and skills current and growing. 

d. I am respectful of all city staff, officials, volunteers, and others who participate in the 

City’s government. 

 

5. I am fiscally responsible. In practice this value means that: 

a. I make decisions after prudent consideration of their financial impact, taking into 

account the long-term financial needs of the City, especially its financial stability.  



b. I demonstrate concern for the proper use of City assets (e.g., personnel, time, 

property, equipment, funds), follow established procedures, and do not use public 

resources for personal gain.  

c. I make decisions that seek to preserve the financial capacity of the City to provide 

programs and services for City residents.  

d. I provide full disclosure of any potential financial or other private conflict of interest. 

I abstain from participating in the discussion and vote on these matters.  

e. I prevent misuse of public funds by establishing, maintaining, and following strong 

fiscal and management controls.  

f. I report any misuse of public funds of which I am aware.  

 

6. I am conscientious. In practice this value means that: 

a. I act in an efficient manner, making decisions and recommendations based upon 

research and facts, taking into consideration short and long term goals.  

b. I follow through in a responsible way, keeping others informed, and responding in a 

timely fashion.  

c. I am respectful of established City processes and guidelines. 

d. I prioritize my duties so that the work of the City may move forward. 

e. I prepare for all meetings by reviewing any materials provided ahead of time. When I 

have materials to contribute, I make sure all others involved have ample time to 

review these materials prior to the meeting. 

f. I attentively listen to the discussions and presentations that are taking place during the 

City Council meetings, and will present my opinions in a respectful and constructive 

manner. 

 

7. I communicative effectively. In practice this value means that: 

a. I convey the City's care for and commitment to its citizens.  

b. I communicate in various ways that I am approachable, open-minded, and willing to 

participate in dialog.  

c. I engage in effective two-way communication by listening carefully, asking 

questions, and responding appropriately which adds value to conversations.  

d. I do not interfere with the orderly conduct of meetings by interrupting others or 

making personal comments not germane to the business at hand.  

e. I follow up on inquiries in a timely manner. 

f. I encourage and facilitate citizen involvement in policy decision-making. 

g. I am respectful in disagreements and contribute constructively to discussions on the 

issue.  

 

8. I am collaborative. In practice this value means that: 

a. I act in a cooperative manner with groups and other individuals, working together in a 

spirit of tolerance and understanding to accomplish common goals. 

b. I share information with others in a timely manner so that, together, we can make 

informed decisions. 

c. I work towards consensus building and gain value from diverse opinions.  

d. I accomplish the goals and responsibilities of my individual position, while respecting 

my role as a member of a team.  



 

9. I am forward thinking. In practice this value means that: 

a. I promote intelligent, proactive, and thoughtful innovation in order to advance the 

City's policy agenda and provide City services while considering the broader 

regional, state-wide, national, and international implications of the City's decisions 

and issues.  

b. I maintain consistent standards, but am also sensitive to the need for compromise, 

creative problem solving, and making improvements when appropriate.  

c. I am open to new ideas and processes, adopting them as they conserve resources and 

provide efficient and effective service. 

d. I consider the potential long-term consequences and implications of my actions and 

inactions.  

 

 

Adopted by the Spring Lake Park City Council on this 16th day of January, 2018. 



































 

Police Report  

December 2017 

Submitted for Council Meeting – January 16, 2018 

 

The Spring Lake Park Police Department responded to five hundred and ninety-eight calls for service for 

the month of December 2017. This is compared to responding to five hundred and one calls for service 

in December 0f 2016. 

School Resource Officer Chlebeck reports handling nine calls for service at our local schools, along with 

fifteen student contacts, four escorts and one follow up investigation into a school related issue for the 

month of December 2017. Officer Chlebeck noted that school was in session for fourteen days for the 

month of December and that five students were charged with 5th degree assault and disorderly conduct. 

Officer Chlebeck also noted that he attended the OEC Advisory Board Meeting and 3 Echo Hostile Event 

Training. For further details see Officer Chlebeck’s attached report.  

Investigator Baker reports handling forty-eight cases for the month of December 2017. Forty-one of 

these cases were felony in nature, four of these cases were gross misdemeanor in nature and three of 

these cases were misdemeanor in nature. Investigator Baker also notes monitoring six active forfeiture 

cases along with his normal case load. For further details see Investigator Baker’s attached report.  

With the New Year starting, I would like to take a moment and recap the year of 2017 and the 

contributions that the Spring Lake Park Police Reserve Unit has made for the City of Spring Lake Park, 

the Police Department and our residents. The Spring Lake Park Police Reserve Unit currently consists of 

seven volunteer individuals, we currently are accepting applications for the Police Reserve Program and 

hope to have a full staff of ten Police Reserves in the future. 

 For the year of 2017, our reserves have donated 1,431 hours of service to the City of Spring Lake Park 

assisting our officers in the city, at local events and events held in Anoka County. The 2017 National 

Volunteer Hourly Rate of Pay for Minnesota is currently at $26.40 an hour, this equates to a saving of 

$37,778.40 worth of volunteering that the police department would have had to pay an officer to cover 

over the course of 2017. I would like to take this opportunity and personally thank each and every one 

of our seven Spring Lake Park Police Reservists for their volunteering to be a part of our Police Reserve 

Program and for providing the high quality of assistance to our officers, residents and the City of Spring 



Lake Park. It is through their dedication to this program that it continues to be successful and growing.  I 

would also like to personally thank our Reserve Coordinator’s Officer Chlebeck and Officer Bennek for 

their continued dedication and guidance in helping make our Police Reserve Program the best that it can 

be.  

The Spring Lake Park Police Department in its quest to keep our community as safe as possible, also 

participated in the State/Federal program called TZD (Toward Zero Deaths) in 2017. This program is 

designed to address problematic driving behaviors on a national basis across our country to include but 

not limited to driving under the influence of alcohol/drugs, distracted driving and other unsafe 

behaviors exhibited by motor vehicle drivers and is a grant funded program. The Spring Lake Park Police 

Department was able to participate and work thirty separate shifts over the course the year 2017. 

Spring Lake Park Officers effected two hundred and eighty-nine traffic stops, issued two hundred and 

eighteen traffic violation warnings along with issuing one hundred and seventy-nine traffic citations. The 

Spring Lake Park Police Department continues to pursue the quest of keeping our community as safe as 

possible, along with national quest of helping to curb unsafe behaviors of drivers across our nation.  

The Spring Lake Park Police Department Administrative Office Staff continue to remain steadfast in their 

duties, typing and imaging reports, filing, answering and dispensing phone calls for service and 

information, while continuing to address citizen concerns at our “Police Public Walk up Window”, along 

with other duties that may be assigned on a daily basis.  

The month of December 2017 has been a busy month for myself as well, besides handling the day to day 

operations of the police department, I continue to attend meetings on a daily basis representing the City 

of Spring Lake Park and the Police Department which include but not limited to: City Council Meetings 

held during the course of the month, POST mandated training for police officers, research of new squad 

light bar systems for future purchases, administrative staff and department meetings, conducting yearly 

employee reviews, etc. I did attend the City of Spring Lake Park annual employee appreciation luncheon 

held here at city hall and would like to personally thank the Mayor and City Council for having this event, 

I believe a good time was had by all those that were able to attend.  

 

This will conclude my report for December 2017. 

Are there any questions.  

 

  



Spring Lake Park Police Department 
Investigations Monthly Report 

 

 
Investigator 

Brad Baker 

 

December 2017 
 

Total Case Load 
 

Case Load by Level of Offense: 48 
 

Felony    41 

Gross Misdemeanor  4 

Misdemeanor   3 

 

 

Case Dispositions: 
 

County Attorney    6 

Juvenile County Attorney  1 

City Attorney    2 

Forward to Other Agency  0 

SLP Liaison    0 

Carried Over    21 

Unfounded     0 

Exceptionally Cleared   9 

Closed/Inactive    9 

 

                  Forfeitures: 
Active Forfeitures   6 

Forfeitures Closed   0 

 



Spring Lake Park Police / School Resource Officer Report 

December 2017 
 

Incidents by School Location Reports (ICRs) Student Contacts* Escorts/Other Follow Up Inv. 

Spring Lake Park High School 8 15 4 1 

Discovery Days (pre-school) 1    

Lighthouse School     

Park Terrace Elementary School     

District Office     

Able and Terrace Parks (School Related)     

School Related     

Miscellaneous Locations     

Totals: 9 15 4 1 

 

 

Breakdown of Reports (ICRs)  

Theft reports (cellphones, iPods, bikes, etc…) 1 

Students charged with Assault or Disorderly Conduct 5 

Students charged with other crimes 1 

Non-students Charged  

Warrant Arrests  

Miscellaneous reports 2 

 







RESOLUTION NO. 18-02 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING HY-VEE FIRST ADDITION OF SPRING LAKE PARK 

FINAL PLAT 

 

WHEREAS, Hy-Vee, Inc. (the “Applicant”) has submitted an application for approval of 

final plat for Hy-Vee First Addition of Spring Lake Park; and 

 

WHEREAS, the subdivision is located on three parcels on three parcels totaling 

approximately 13 acres in size and legally described in Exhibit A of this Resolution; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council approved preliminary plat, subject to conditions, at its 

regular meeting on August 21, 2017; and 

 

WHEREAS, City staff has recommended approval of the final plat for Hy-Vee First 

Addition of Spring Lake Park, subject to a series of conditions. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring Lake 

Park that the City Council does hereby approve the final plat application for Hy-Vee First 

Addition of Spring Lake Park, conditioned upon the following: 

 

1. Applicant shall provide documentation to the City that the Rice Creek Watershed 

District has approved the plat. 

2. The applicant shall verify that previous plat review comments from the Minnesota 

Department of Transportation have been addressed as directed. 

3. Per the requirements of Resolution 17-19, the applicant shall provide a drainage and 

utility easement over the north 275 feet of the Anoka CSAH 35 vacated right-of-way. 

4. Prior to plat recording, the Public Works Director and City Engineer shall review the 

location of internal drainage and utility easements and approve of the same, in their 

discretion. 

5. Applicant shall enter into a Developer’s Agreement and Sidewalk and Utility 

Maintenance Agreement with the City prior to recording Final Plat to cover all 

aspects of design, construction, fees and costs.  Applicant shall provide updated plans 

as specified in Schedule 1 of the Developer’s Agreement. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council hereby grants a 90 day extension to 

the final plat recording deadline as specified in Section 152.017(D) of the City Code. 

 

 

The foregoing Resolution was moved for adoption by . 

 

Upon Vote being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof:   

 

And the following voted against the same:   

 

  



 

Whereon the Mayor declared said Resolution duly passed and adopted the 16th day of January, 

2018. 

 

 

APPROVED BY: 

 

___________________________________ 

Cindy Hansen, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, City Administrator 

 







 
Memorandum 
To:   Mayor Hansen and Members of the City Council 

From:  Daniel R. Buchholtz, MMC, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

Date:  January 10, 2018 

Subject: Liquor License Application – Sota Tap House & Grill 
 
The City of Spring Lake Park has received a liquor license application from Bradley Povlitzki to open a new 
bar called the “Sota Tap House & Grill.”  The location of the Sota Tap House & Grill would be at 8407 
Plaza Boulevard NE, the same location as the former “Pov’s on 65.” 
 
As part of the liquor licensing process, the City conducts a thorough background investigation of the 
applicant.  I would like to thank Police Chief Ebeltoft for the significant amount of time he spent to put 
together a thorough background of the applicant.  The full background investigation report has been 
distributed to you under separate cover.  The report has a combination of public and private data, as 
classified under the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act.  A summary of the background report has 
been included in the City Council packet. 
 
As you will note, Mr. Povlitzki’s previous establishment, Pov’s Sports Bar, had a significant number of 
police calls between 2008 and 2011 (the last full year of operation), totaling 380 calls for service.  This 
number of calls for service far exceeds the calls for service at any of the City’s licensed establishments.  In 
addition to the high volume of calls, the severity of the calls were significant.  As Chief Ebeltoft notes in his 
memorandum, if Pov’s Sports Bar had been located within the corporate limits of Spring Lake Park, its 
license would have been brought forward for review by the City Council under the provisions of Section 
111.10 of the City Code. 
 
Chief Ebeltoft will be available to answer any questions the City Council may have.  Any questions 
regarding information presented in Attachment A (Criminal History/Driver’s License Check/Credit 
History Check/etc.) will need to be asked in closed session as that information is non-public.  Questions 
regarding the remainder of the application (vision for establishment, references, history of previous 
business, police call history).can occur in open session. 
 
A copy of the background investigation report was sent to Mr. Povlitzki via certified mail on January 10, 
2018 so that he would have an opportunity to review the information and respond to any questions the 
City Council may have. 
 
The City Council must make findings on the application in a way that is consistent with City Code, 
particularly Section 111.17 of the City’s Liquor Regulations.   
 
If you have any questions regarding the application, please don’t hesitate to contact me at 763-784-6491. 





Report Summary 

Liquor License Application 

Bradley T. Povlitzki 

Bradley Povlitzki submitted a Liquor License Application on November 21, 2017, to the City of Spring 
Lake Park in regards to opening a new business at 8407 Plaza Blvd NE in Spring Lake Park. The new 
business name was identified as "Sota Tap House & Grill, LLC". This geographical location is the old 
"Pov's on Hwy 65" location and is currently in trust for the Povlitzki family. Below is a summary of the 
findings of the attached report and investigation for the Liquor License Application. 

1) Criminal Historv/Driver's License Check/Credit History Check, etc.- (Subject: Bradley Thomas 
Povlitzki, Dob/ ) - Process completed by Polic;e Records Technician LuAnn Larson. 

a. Applicant had no Criminal History 
b. Applicant has a valid Driver's License 
c. Credit Report  

 
d. Applicant has no delinquent taxes/State or Federal Liens on his name. 
e. Civil Family & Probate Case Records -Applicant is clear 
f. Judgement Records- Applicant is clear. 
g. Criminal/Traffic/Petty Case Records -Applicant below cases; 

  
  

h. Better Business Bureau Rating- Applicant and previous business (Pov's Sports Bar I Andover) 
1851 Bunker Lake Blvd NW, Andover, MN -Applicant had no complaints and no reviews. 

i. City of Ham Lake -Applicant has no outstanding or due or delinquent bills owed the City of 
Ham Lake. 

For further details see Police Records Technician LuAnn Larson attached report (See Attachment "A"). 



2) Applicant filled out required Liquor License Application for City of Spring Lake Park: Applicant

Bradley Povlitzki is requesting an "On-Sale Liquor License", he provided all required personal 
information. He identified the proposed business as "Sota Tap House & Grill, LLC". (See Attachment 

B) Liquor License Application, Notarized by Peggy Anderson on November 21, 2017. With required 
application fees for Liquor License, 2 am License, Sunday Sales License in the amount of $9,000.00 
check on the personal account of Bradley T and Dana S Povlitzki thru US Bank. 

3) Applicant provided documentation of Limited Liability Company status (LLC) from Minnesota 

Secretary of State: Applicant listed himself as President of business and LLC with no other active 
members of a LLC Board (Vice-President, Secretary Treasurer, etc.), applicant indicated that his 
attorneys have filled the necessary paperwork (Will, Trust, etc.) for his wife (Dana Povlitzki) to take 
over the business if something should happen to him. For further details {See Attachment-C) 

4) Applicant provided a Legal Description of the proposed property Located at 8407 Plaza Blvd NE, 

Spring Lake Park, MN. See Anoka County Property Summary (Attachment- D). Property is currently 
registered in the name of "Marlene Povlitzki- Trustee". Applicant intends to purchase property from 
Povlitzki Trust if liquor license is approved. 

5) Applicant indicated that he intends to utilize personal funds and mortgage to finance purchase of 

property from trust if liquor license is approved: 

a. $300,000.00 -Personal Funds 
b. $600,000.00 -(Approximately) Mortgage -Applied for thru Wells Fargo- First week of 

December 2017- Process not completed, pending outcome of liquor license application. 

6) Applicant provided hand drawing of proposed floor plan of business Sota Tap House & Grill: 
(See Attachment -E) 

7) Applicant's Personal References: Applicant provided three separate references per the application 
process that were from Minnesota, not related to the applicant, of good moral character and do not 
have a financial interest in the applicant. All references were contacted and interviewed by myself 
{Chief of Police). All references provided positive feedback about the applicant and his ability to run 
a business. For specific comments of references see attached report of Chief Ebeltoft (Attachment 

F). 

8) Applicant listed a previous business "Pov's Sports Bar" in Andover (1851 Bunker Lake Blvd NW) on 

the Liquor License Application: City of Andover was provided the necessary release of information 
form per Minnesota Data Standards and copies of all correspondence between the City of Andover 
and the applicant doing business as "Pov's Sports Bar'' in Andover was requested. Upon reviewing 
this correspondence, I noticed numerous correspondence between the City of Andover and Bradley 
Povlitzki regarding first and second notices for Liquor and Tobacco License Applications and 
insurance coverages for the business of Pov's Sports Bar'' in Andover, including a letter (Attachment 

- G) dated September 29, 2011, addressed to Pov's Sports Bar, located at 1851 Bunker Lake 
Boulevard, N.W. Andover, Minnesota 55304, indicating that the liquor license and tobacco license 



for the above s�ated business expired on September 31, 2011 and that the liquor license would not 
be renewed for 2012, until all delinquent taxes are brought current. This letter was signed by Deputy 
Clerk, Daniel Gantner of the City of Andover. 

Even with the noted correspondence regarding liquor license and tobacco license concerns, the City 
of Andover did issue the required liquor and tobacco licenses to Bradley .Povlitzki for "Pov's Sports 
Bar" in Andover for the years it was in business including 2012, until Bradley Povlitzki requested his 
money back upon closing the business in December 2011. For further details see Chief Ebeltoft's 
attached report (Attachment -F). 

9) Anoka County Sheriff's Office Calls for Service at Pov's Sports Bar in Andover for the years 2007 to 

2012. 

Anoka County Sheriff's Office was the law enforcement agency responsible for responding to calls 
for service at Pov's Sports Bar in Andover due to having the law enforcement services contract with 
the City of Andover. Therefore, a copy of the required Release of Information Form in accordance 
with Minnesota Data Practices was provided (Attachment- H) to the Anoka County Sheriff's Office 
and a copy of calls for service for the below years was requested. 

Reviewing the calls for service to Pov's Sports Bar in Andover, I found there was a high volume of 
calls each year as indicated below. The calls for service ranged from 5TH Degree Assaults to Felony 3rd 

Degree Assaults with substantial bodily harm, including two people being stabbed, Criminal Sexual 
Conduct (Rape) Cases, Disorderly Conducts, Thefts, Damage to Property cases, etc. All these type of 
cases if the business would have been in the City of Spring Lake Park would have been violations of 
Spring Lake Park City Ordinance Chapter 111, (See Attachment - 1), which would have been brought 
to the Mayor and City Councils attention for liquor license renewal concerns by myself. 

Bradley Povlitzki, did indicate that he reached out to Anoka County Sheriff's Office and requested 
assistance with the calls for service, Bradley Povlitzki indicated that a Sheriff's Deputy did come out 
to the business for a period of time and review what was going on. Bradley Povlitzki indicated that 
the Deputy advise that he could not do anything more to address the calls. I was unable to 
substantiate this statement that Bradley Povlitzki made with anyone at the Anoka County Sheriffs 
Office but did note upon reviewing the calls for service for the stated years that the Anoka County 
Sheriff's Office Deputies routinely parked in the parking lot of Pov's Sports Bar in Andover due to 
high volume of calls and had the above stated incidents occur in their presence. 

Bradley Povlitzki did have numerous Alcohol and Tobacco compliance checks completed on his 
business Pov's Sports Bar in Andover, Minnesota. Bradley Povlitzki's business passed all Alcohol 
Compliance Checks. But failed a Tobacco Compliance Check by selling tobacco Products to Children 
on August 25, 2011, Case# 11-193283. All other Tobacco Compliance Checks were passed. 

2012 
23 (After Closed) 

2011 
107 

2010 
95 

2009 
93 

2008 
85 



For comparison purposes, I had calls for service for local establishments of this nature, in the City of 
Spring Lake Park queried for the years 2017 to 2013. Below are the business names and results for 
requested years: (See Attachment - M} 

Business Name: 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 

Monte's 10 11 14 10 12 

Laddie Lake Pub 26 18 20 13 22 

Biff's 44 17 32 22 39 

Pov's on Hwy 65 8 6 53 64 51 

As this comparison shows, the frequency calls for service are nowhere the calls for service of Pov's 
Sports Bar in Andover, with the exception of the calls for service of Pov's on Hwy 65 for the years 
2013 to 2015 when Bradley Povlitzki closed Pov's on Hwy 65. 

10} Applicant submitted Letter to Mayor and Council: Applicant submitted a signed letter indicating his 
intent to open a new business as per the Liquor License Application at the location of the old Pov's 
on Hwy 65 location. Applicant (Bradley Povlitzki) in this letter indicated that the land and building at 
this location are in a trust for which he is the executor of for his family. Bradley Povlitzki states that 
he and his wife have decided to purchase this property from the trust and open a 
bar/restaurant/banquet facility. 

Bradley Povlitzki further states in this letter that he understood that there was a great deal of 
problems with Povlitzki' s and the City after his mother passed away and his brother Richard taking 
over. Bradley indicated that after having a meeting with Administrator Buchholtz and myself in 
December of 2015, they were informed of the problems. Bradley Povlitzki indicated that he was 
informed by Administrator Buchholtz and myself that Rich had been telling the city that he (Bradley 
Povlitzki was operating the business and that all the issues needed to be handled by him (Bradley 
Povlitzki). 

Bradley Povlitzki writes in this letter, "I am writing this to let you know that is absolutely untrue". 

"I was not employed by or managing Povlitzki' s and had nothing to with the day to day 

operations." 

Bradley further indicates in his letter that his proposed new business in Spring Lake Park would be 
owned solely by his wife and himself. Bradley further states that'' Rich will not be employed there or 
be involved in any facet whatsoever". Bradley further stated that "goes for the rest of my brothers 
and sisters as well. 



Bradley further states in his letter that he worked for his family at Povlitzki' s from 1986 to 1994 but 
then opened Pov's Sports Bar in Andover in 1994 and that he owned and managed that location 
until 2012 when he sold it to Wal-Mart. (See Attachment -J) 

11) Phone Interview with Applicant (Bradley Povlitzki) conducted by Chief of Police: As part the Liquor 
License Application, I conduct a phone interview with the applicant to verify submitted information, 
reviewing the application and all documents supporting submitted information and all other aspects 
of the application process. Bradley has indicated during the entire liquor license application process 
that he has had nothing to do with Pov's on Hwy 65 since 1994 when he opened his own business in 
Andover, Minnesota. Bradley further states that since that time Rich and their parents have been 
the ones operating Pov' s on Hwy 65, until both parents passed away and Rich took over the business 
and management of it. Bradley Povlitzki has indicated that the only aspect that he had to address at 
Pov's on Hwy 65 was being the executor of the trust. Bradley Povlitzki indicated that he would sign 
checks on the account of Povco, Inc. as the executor but that Rich would take the signed checks and 
pay bills. Bradley Povlitzki indicated that he did this until there was no money in the account and 
then he quit signing checks on the Povco, Inc. Account. I did inquire with Bradley Povlitzki about a 
check written on the Povco, Inc. account, check# 5374 for Pov's on Hwy 65 in the amount of 
$9,500.00 on 11/30/12 appearing to have his signature on it (See Attachment- K). This check was 
provided to the City of Spring Lake Park for a Liquor License but was returned NSF. Bradley Povlitzki 
indicated that he did not sign that check, but then stated again, that he signed a lot of checks and 
Rich would disperse them for paying bills. Bradley Povlitzki further indicated he did not remember 
when but that he believed he had not signed a check on the Povco, Inc. account for some time 
!;>efore that date and in fact had told Rich no, when he asked for a check on the account due to no 
money being in the account. I then thanked Bradley Povlitzki for this information and ended my 
phone conversation with him. 

Doing further investigation into statements made by Bradley Povlitzki and not having anything to do 
with the business "Pov' s on Hwy 65 since 1994, I found a news article (See Attachment - L) 

highlighting the closing of Pov's Sports Bar in Andover, author Eric Hagen written January 12, 2012. 

Article showed a picture of Bradley Povlitzki in his establishment with this caption below the picture. 
"Although Brad Povlitzki is closing Pov's Sports Bar in Andover, he will begin managing his family's 

other bar business -Pov's on 65 - in Spring Lake Park." Although his is not proof positive that 
Bradley Povlitzki was not being truthful in the current application process and with his involvement 
with the family business Pov's on Hwy 65 as he had stated in a letter written to the Mayor and City 
Council. This coupled with the fact that Bradley Povlitzki' s brother Rich has indicated to myself and 
the Mayor and City Council that the "Ladies Night" being held at Pov's on Hwy 65 in 2012 was his 
brother (Brad Povlitzki's) idea and that he (Rich) was not handling the day to day business from 
February to August, of Pov's on Hwy 65, due to taking care of their mother during her serious illness 
and subsequent death, which was noted in Official Council minutes of December 17, 2012. 

Bradley Povlitzki also appeared in person at the July 7, 2003, council meeting indicating that he was 
part owner of Pov's on Hwy 65. Does bring great concern about truthfulness of Bradley Povlitzki and 
his actual involvement in the family business of Pov's on Hwy 65 over the course of time that 



Bradley Povlitzki has indicated that he had nothing to do with that business as a result of this 
application process 

I have concluded my investigation in to applicant Bradley T. Povlitzki and the liquor license 
application for the purposed business of "Sota Tap House and Grill, LLC." I am submitting the above 
stated information to the Mayor and Council for their review and consideration of whether or not to 
grant a new liquor license to the applicant. 







 

                Memorandum 
 
 

 To: Mayor and City Council 
 
 From: Chief Doug Ebeltoft 
 
 Re: 2018 Squad Order and Purchase Authorization 
 
 Date: January 16, 2018 
 
 

The 2018 State Bid Contract for Dodge Police Vehicles has been awarded to Dodge of Burnsville, 
this dealership has been the dealership that we have utilized to purchase our patrol vehicles 
since transitioning to the Dodge Charger, V-8, AWD Patrol Vehicles from Ford vehicles. Dodge of 
Burnsville has been able to provide the best price for our vehicles even before having the State 
Bid Contract for Dodge Police Vehicles. This year is no different.   
 
I am pleased to inform the Mayor and City Council that the Dodge of Burnsville State Contract 
Bid # 134125 quote cost for the 2018 Dodge Police Charger, V-8, AWD is $23,612.00. This 
purchase price would come in under budget, of the budgeted amount of $32,646.00, for a 
savings of $9,034.00.  
 
After careful research, consideration and time, I have determined that the 2018 Dodge Police 
Charger, V-8, AWD will best fit the police department needs and finances.  
 
Therefore, I am requesting authorization from the Mayor and City Council to purchase our 2018 
Dodge Charger, V-8, AWD from Dodge of Burnsville for the listed price of $23,612.00 and place 
the order as soon as possible.   

 
 















 
Memorandum 
To:   Mayor Hansen and Members of the City Council 

From:  Daniel R. Buchholtz, MMC, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

Date:  June 14, 2017 

Subject: Site Development Agreement – Hy-Vee 
 

City Attorney Thames has concluded negotiating the Site Development Agreement between the 
City of Spring Lake Park and Hy-Vee for the project located at the northeast corner of Highway 65 
and 81st Avenue NE. 
 
The Site Development Agreement spells out the developer’s responsibilities for the construction of 
the project.  A summary of these responsibilities include: 

 Agreement grants permission to Hy-Vee to construct a 76,000 square foot grocery store and 
a 8,700 square foot commercial building with a gas station, convenience store and coffee 
shop. 

 Requires Hy-Vee to comply with the terms of Ordinance 440, adopted by the City Council 
on August 21, 2017. 

 Requirement of development fees to be paid and financial guarantees to be posted to 
ensure compliance with the agreement. 

 Outlines the erosion control measures that must be undertaken prior to the start of site 
grading and how compliance with these requirements will be obtained. 

 Specifies that the developer assumes full financial responsibility for any damage which may 
occur to public property as a result of activity by the developer, its contractors or 
subcontractors or assigns relating to the development of the project. 

 Requirement to clean dirt and debris from the streets that has resulted from construction 
work under the site improvement plan and outlines process should the developer fail to do 
so. 

 Requirement that developer provide and maintain various insurance coverages during the 
construction of the improvements 

 Obligates the developer to make cash escrow payments in the amount of $29,300 and 
requires the developer to make additional cash escrow payments if the escrow is 
insufficient.  Any remaining escrow money will be returned to the developer once the 
project is complete. 

 Responsibility of developer to obtain all applicable permits and sign required maintenance 
agreements for improvements. 



 Requires developer to complete a new traffic study of the CSAH 35 and 81st Avenue NE 
intersection.  If Anoka County Highway Department determines that a southbound right 
turn lane is required, the developer is required to construct the turn lane at its own 
expense.  Should the developer fail to comply, the City can construct the turn lane and 
assess the property for the costs associated with the turn lane project. 

 Requires developer to maintain sanitary sewer, water, drainage facilities and sidewalk 
facilities.  The sidewalk is open to the public. 

 
Upon approval of the Site Development Agreement by the City Council and execution of the 
agreement by the City and Hy-Vee, the document will be recorded with Anoka County. 
 
City Attorney Thames will be at the City Council meeting to answer any questions you may have 
about the development agreement.  If you have any questions prior, please don’t hesitate to 
contact me at 763-784-6491. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SITE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 

 

 This Site Development Agreement, (“Agreement”) is made this ____ day of __________, 

2017 between Hy-Vee, Inc., an Iowa corporation, with offices located at 5820 Westown 

Parkway, West Des Moines, IA 50266 (“Developer”) and the City of Spring Lake Park, a 

Minnesota municipal corporation, with offices located at 1301 81st Avenue N.E., Spring Lake 

Park, Minnesota 55432 (“City”) and shall be effective if Developer closes on its purchase of the 

“Subject Property” (hereinafter defined).  

 WHEREAS, Developer is under contract to purchase the following properties within the 

City of Spring Lake Park, totaling approximately 11.83 acres:  

PID #01-30-24-24-0038 

PID #01-30-24-24-0039 

PID #01-30-24-24-0002 

As described in greater detail in the attached Exhibit A.  Collectively referenced within 

as the “Subject Property” 

WHEREAS, Developer is proposing to construct and operate an approximately 76,000 

square foot grocery store on the north part of the Subject Property, to include a liquor store, with 



 

 

parking on the south half of the Subject Property, and a new approximately 8,700 square foot 

commercial building with a gas station, convenience store and coffee shop in the southwest 

corner of the Subject Property, roughly in the location of the existing liquor store building on the 

Subject Property, which is to be removed (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the City rezoned the Subject Property from C-1, Shopping Center 

Commercial to PUD #2017-1, Planned Unit Development, on August 21, 2017. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

1) Site Development.  Developer is hereby granted permission to construct an 

approximately 76,000 square foot grocery store on the north part of the Subject Property, 

to include a liquor store, with parking on the south half of the Subject Property, and a 

new 8,700 square foot commercial building with a gas station, convenience store and 

coffee shop in the southwest corner of the Subject Property, roughly in the location of the 

existing liquor store building currently on the Subject Property, which is to be removed.   

 

2) Plans and Specifications.  Developer shall complete the construction in accordance with 

the final approved plans (collectively, the “Site Improvement Plan”) as more specifically 

set forth on Schedule 1 attached hereto, and as may be amended and approved in final 

form by the City.  Developer shall also comply with all requirements outlined in the City 

Planner’s Memorandum Re: Hy-Vee Planned Unit Development Approval and 

Preliminary Plat Northwest corner of 81st Avenue NE and Central Avenue, dated August 

7, 2017.   

 

3) Ordinance No. 440.  Developer shall comply with the terms and conditions of Ordinance 

No. 440, adopted by the City on August 21, 2017. 

 

4) Financial Guarantees.  The attached Exhibit B outlines the financial requirements and 

guarantees of Developer, which shall be the exclusive responsibility of Developer.  A 

Letter of Credit (the “LOC”) in the amounts set forth on Exhibit B must be provided to 

and accepted by the City, such acceptance not to be unreasonably withheld; and all 

required fees, costs and escrow amounts paid, before Developer commences any work on 

Subject Property.  The City may draw upon the LOC in the event Developer fails to 

complete the public improvements identified in the Site Improvement Plan and on 

Exbibit B; additionally, the City may also draw upon the LOC to seek reimbursement for 

Developer’s failure to pay amounts due under this Agreement after the applicable notice 

and cure periods have run. Once the Project is complete and all amounts due hereunder 

have been paid, the LOC shall be released.  In addition to posting the sureties 

contemplated above, Developer shall also provide an additional bond, letter of credit, or 

cash escrow chosen by Developer to the City, as indicated on Exhibit B, in an amount 

reasonably determined by the City (the “Maintenance Bond”).  The Maintenance Bond 



 

 

shall shall be in a form approved by the City, approval not to be unreasonably withheld, 

and shall remain outstanding for a period of thiry-six months after completion of the 

landscaping portion of the Site Improvement Plan, at which point the Maintenance Bond 

will be released and any unused portion will be returned to Developer .    

 

5) Erosion and Siltation Control. 

 

a.   Control Measures.  Before any grading is started under the Site Improvement 

Plan or related permit, all down gradient perimeter control measures as provided 

for in the Site Improvement Plan shall be installed.  No final approval of the 

improvements authorized by the Site Improvement Plan (nor a final certificate of 

occupancy) shall be issued until all disturbed areas have been stabilized as 

provided for in the Site Improvement Plan. The LOC shall guaranty the erosion 

control and grading work required in this paragraph. 

 

b.   Unsatisfactory Conditions. Developer shall be responsible for compliance with 

the approved erosion and sediment control (ESC) portion of the Site Improvement 

Plan.  In the event the Developer fails to comply with the ESC requirements, the 

City shall give Developer telephonic and email  notice of the nature of such 

failure in accordance paragraph 8.  Developer shall correct such unsatisfactory 

condition described in the telephonic and email notice within five (5) business 

days after first receiving telephonic and email notice, or if the nature of such 

unsatisfactory condition is such that the same cannot reasonably be corrected 

within said five (5) business day period, then Developer shall have such 

additional time as is reasonably necessary to correct such unsatisfactory condition 

provided Developer promptly commences to correct such unsatisfactory condition 

and proceeds with diligence and continuity.  During the term of this Agreement, if 

Developer fails to comply as provided above, then the City has the right to enter 

upon the Subject Property and correct said condition at Developer’s expense.  

City shall be entitled to all of its reasonable costs and expenses of enforcing this 

paragraph of the Agreement, including, but not limited to, out of pocket legal, 

fiscal and engineering costs paid to third party providers of services.  City may at 

its option invoice the said costs for direct payment from Developer.  City reserves 

the right to invoice the said cost for direct payment from Developer and to 

withhold a final certificate of occupancy or final approval of the work provided 

for under the Site Improvement Plan, until City receives payment in full of its 

undisputed invoiced costs.  All invoiced costs shall be deemed to be undisputed 

unless Developer notifies the City, in writing, of any disputed portion of an 

invoice, identifies a bona fide, reasonable basis for disputing said amount and, 

within 30 days of notice of the dispute, initiates a meeting between the parties to 

discuss resolution of the dispute. . 

 

6) Maintenance of Public Property Damaged or Clutter During Construction.  Developer 

agrees to assume full financial responsibility and to pay all costs for any damage which 

may occur to public property including, but not limited to, streets, street sub-base, base, 

bituminous surface, curb, utility systems including, but not limited to water main, sanitary 



 

 

sewer or storm sewer damaged or cluttered with debris (collectively, the “Public Property”) 

when said damage occurs as a result of activity by the Developer, its contractors or 

subcontractors or assigns relating to the development of the Subject Property as provided 

in the Site Improvement Plan.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing contained herein 

shall require Developer to improve any of the Public Property to a condition superior than 

the condition of said Public Property at the time of Developer’s acquisition of the Subject 

Property (“Closing”).  The City shall schedule an inspection of said Public Property with 

Developer and Developer’s general contractor on or around the date of Closing and shall 

document the condition of said Public Property.  In the event the Developer fails to 

maintain or repair the damaged Public Property, the City shall give Developer written 

notice of the nature of the default or damage in accordance with paragraph 8.  Developer 

shall maintain or repair the damaged Public Property specified in the written notice within 

three (3) business days after first receiving written notice, or if the nature of such failure is 

such that the same cannot reasonably be maintained or repaired within said three (3) 

business day period, then Developer shall have such additional time as is reasonably 

necessary to complete such maintenance or repair provided Developer promptly 

commences to complete such maintenance or repair and proceeds with diligence and 

continuity.  If Developer fails to maintain or repair the damaged Public Property as 

provided above, then the City may undertake such maintenance or repair.  When the City 

undertakes such maintenance or repair, the Developer shall reimburse the City for all of its 

reasonable expenses within thirty (30) days after Developer has received an invoice 

therefore.  The Developer understands that no final certificate of occupancy shall be issued 

if an amount due hereunder remains unpaid or if the Developer is in default under the terms 

of this Agreement. 

 

7) Street Cleaning.  The Developer shall clean dirt and debris from streets that has resulted 

from construction work under the Site Improvement Plans by the Developer, its 

contractors, subcontractors, agents or assigns.  The City will inspect the site not less than 

on a weekly basis and determine whether it is necessary to take additional measures to 

clean dirt and debris from the streets.  In the event the Developer fails to clean dirt and 

debris from the streets, the City shall give Developer telephonic and email  notice of the 

nature of such failure.  Developer shall clean the dirt and debris from the streets described 

in the telephonic and email notice within three full business days after first receiving 

telephonic and email notice, or if the nature of such failure is such that the same cannot 

reasonably be completed within three full business days, then Developer shall have such 

additional time as is reasonably necessary to complete such work provided Developer 

promptly commences to complete such work and proceeds with diligence and continuity.  

If Developer fails to complete such work as provided above, then the City may complete 

or contract to complete the clean-up of the streets at Developer’s expense.  When the City 

incurs any expense under the terms of this paragraph, the Developer shall reimburse the 

City for any reasonable costs the City incurred for such work within 30 days after 

Developer has received the City’s invoice therefore. The Developer understands that no 

final certificate of occupancy shall be issued if an amount due hereunder remains unpaid. 

 

8) Notices.  Any notices, requests or other communications required or permitted to be 

given hereunder shall be (a) telephonic and email only where permitted in the text of the 



 

 

paragraph requiring or permitting notice to be delivered, and (b) otherwise must be in 

writing and delivered via a widely recognized national overnight courier service (e.g., 

UPS, FedEx), or mailed by United States registered or certified mail, return receipt 

requested, postage prepaid, and addressed to each party at its address as set forth below.  

Notices shall be deemed delivered upon actual delivery. 

 

 City:  City of Spring Lake Park 

   1301 81st Avenue N.E. 

   Spring Lake Park, MN 55432 

   Attn:  Daniel R. Buchholtz, City Administrator 

   Telephone:  (763) 792-7211 

Facsimile:  (763) 792-7257 

e-mail: dbuchholtz@slpmn.org 

 

 Copy to: John J. Thames 

   Carson, Clelland & Schreder 

   6300 Shingle Creek Parkway, Suite #305 

   Minneapolis, MN 55430 

   Telephone:  (763) 561-2800 

Facsimile:  (763) 561-1943 

e-mail: john.thames@carsoncs.net 

 

 Developer: Hy-Vee , Inc 

    5820 Westown Parkway,  

                 West Des Moines, IA 50266 

Attn:  Real Estate Dept. 

Telephone: 515-327-2147 

e-mail: phosch@hy-Vee.com 

 

  Copy to: Hy-Vee , Inc 

    5820 Westown Parkway,  

                 West Des Moines, IA 50266 

Attn:  Legal Dept. 

Telephone: 515-453-2787 

e-mail: legalnotices@hy-vee.com 

 

9) Insurance Requirements.  Developer shall provide and maintain at all times during the 

construction of the improvements and performance of the Site Improvement Plan until 

after acceptance by the City of all improvements: 

 

a. Commercial general liability insurance (including operations, contingent liability, 

operations of subcontractors, competed operations and contractual liability 

insurance) with limits against bodily injury, including death, and property damage 

(to include, but not be limited to damages caused by erosion or flooding) which 

may arise out of Developer’s work or the work of any of its subcontractors.  

 



 

 

b. Limits for bodily injury or death shall not be less than $750,000.00 for one person 

and $1,500,000.00 for each occurrence; limits for property damage shall not be 

less than $2,000,000.00 for each occurrence. 

 

c. Worker’s compensation insurance, with statutory coverage, if applicable. 

 

d. Developer shall file a Certificate of Insurance with the City Administrator prior to 

commencing site grading. The City shall be named as an Additional Insured on a 

primary and non contributory basis on the Certificate. The Certificate shall be 

modified to bear the following wording: 

 

 “Should any of the above policies be canceled before the expiration date thereof, the 

issuing company shall give thirty (30) days written notice of cancellation or material 

change to the Certificate Holder.” 

 

 Developer shall be responsible for providing the above language to its insurer.  

 

10) Escrow Payment by Developer.   Developer shall make escrow payments identified in 

this Agreement for payment of City expenses identified on Exhibit B as the Cash 

Escrow.  In the event the Cash Escrow amount is insufficient based on reasonable 

documentary evidence of actual accrued and/or reasonably anticipated additional costs , 

Developer shall pay reasonable additional escrow as reasonably determined by the City 

Engineer, based on such additional documentary evidence, within fifteen (15) days of 

written demand.  Failure to make payment of the additional escrow amount shall permit 

the City to supplement those amounts from the above-identified LOC. 

 

11) Balance of Escrow to Developer.   In the event that there is any escrow remaining at the 

end of the project and Developer has completed all of its responsibilities and obligations, 

any balance remaining shall be promptly paid to Developer.  Any balance will be mailed 

to the address provided by Developer in this Agreement or such other address given in 

writing by Developer to the City. 

 

12) Watershed District Maintenance Agreement.   All site plans, construction, and 

maintenance shall meet the requirements of the Rice Creek Watershed District. Prior to 

beginning contruction, Developer shall provide the City with a copy of the maintenance 

agreement negotiated with and approved by the the Rice Creek Watershed District.  

Developer shall also provide proof of recording of the same with Anoka County. 

 

13) Developer Responsible for Securing All Applicable Permits.   Developer shall be 

responsible for securing all applicable permits related to the project and shall provide a 

copy of the same to the City, upon request.  This includes, but is not limited to, a Storm 

Water Pollution Prevention Plan, all applicable permits from the City, the Rice Creek 

Watershed District, the Minnesota Department of Health, the Minnesota Pollution 

Control Agency, and the Anoka Highway Department.  

 



 

 

14) Access Approval.    Upon finalization of any applicable traffic mitigation plan, 

Developer must secure the appropriate access approvals from the applicable entities.  

Accesses to 81st Avenue NE require the approval of the City and accesses to to Central 

Avenue require approval of Anoka County.  

 

15) Additional Final Plat Requirements.    Along 81st Avenue NE:  The final plat shall 

include right-of-way dedication that provides a minimum of 33 feet of right-of-way from 

the centerline, or 5 feet from the back of the sidewalk, whichever is greater.  A drainage 

and utility easement shall be provided along 81st Avenue NE to a distance of 50 feet from 

the centerline.  Along Central Avenue/CSAH 35: The right-of-way line proposed in the 

preliminary plat at 50 feet from the centerline is acceptable (subject to Anoka County 

approval).  A drainage and utility easement shall also be provided over the north 275 feet 

of the proposed vacated right-of-way.  Other:  In addition to the requirements listed 

above, Developer shall provide utility easements over all water mains and fire hydrants 

on site.  In the event any such easements are not set forth on the plat, but instead are 

evidenced by separate written agreement, such separate written agreement shall be 

mutually approved by Developer and City. 

 

16) Parking.    As a part of the Project, Developer shall create a minimum of 455 parking 

stalls on the Subject Property and the Subject Property shall not be eligible to contribute 

parking outside of the PUD for joint use pursuant to § 153.139 of the Spring Lake Park 

zoning code.  Developer shall adjust parking lot parameters adjacent to TH65 outlined in 

the preliminary plans to allow adequate setback for landscape screening from vehicles 

and lights on TH65 and aesthetic greenery, while maintaining the proposed sidewalk.  

These plan adjustments shall be reviewed, and require the approval of the City Planner 

and City Engineer, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld.   

 

17) Lighting.    All lighting on the Subject Property shall be provided as shown in the 

Photometric Plan.  All exterior lighting on the Subject Property, whether affixed to poles 

or buildings, shall be down-cast cutoff-type fixtures.  Lighting levels shall not exceed 1 

foot candle at the outside edge of the Subject Property, at all locations.  

  

18) Snow Removal.   Developer shall comply with all snow removal requirements within 

Site Improvement Plan.  Further, Developer shall review and update snow removal and 

snow storage requirements as necessary to ensure that snow removal and storage will not 

encroach on neighboring properties. 

 

19) Compliance with City’s Local Surface Water Plan.   Developer shall submit to the 

City drainage calculations and all other applicable evidence to demonstrate compliance 

with the City’s Surface Water Management Plan.   

 

20) Traffic Study, Mitigation, 2 Year Review Required.   Due to concerns about the 

impact on traffic from the Project and proposed Site Improvement Plan on adjacent 

streets (including but not limited to the intersection of TH65 and 81st Ave. NE), 

Developer submitted a traffic study in form and detail acceptable to the City.  The study 

evaluated the impact of the proposed development on the adjacent streets. Developer 



 

 

shall be obligated to perform all traffic mitigation reasonably deemed necessary to 

address traffic impacts, as reasonably determined by the City, the Minnesota Department 

of Transportation and Anoka County.  

 

 Additionally, at least 20 months and not more than 24 months after the completion of 

construction on the Project, Developer shall complete a new traffic study of the CSAH 35 

and 81st Ave NE intersection.  The study shall include level of service ratings for each 

approach as well as queue lengths versus available storage for each lane of approach.  

Said study shall be provided to Anoka County Highway Department for their review.  

Anoka County Highway Department will determine the need for a southbound CSAH 35 

right turn lane onto 81st Ave NE based on the then current version of Anoka County’s 

Development Review guidelines at said point in time.  Developer shall be responsible for 

fully financing the construction said turn lane if it is determined to be necessary in the 

sole discretion of the Anoka County Highway Department.  Further, should such 

construction be deemed necessary and Developer fail to complete the same within one 

year of receiving notice to do so, Developer agrees that the City may complete such 

construction and seek reimbursement from Developer’s posted sureties and/or by 

specially assessing the Subject Property.  In the event that the City specially assesses 

such costs to the Subject Property, Developer agrees that the City may then assess any 

and all reasonable, actual costs of that construction to the Subject Property, and 

Developer hereby waives any right of appeal to such an assessment (other than relative to 

the cost thereof not being reasonable or actual), but such waiver is only of any right to 

appeal such an assessment.    

   

21) Final Plat Recording.    No construction on the project may be commenced until 

Developer has recorded the City approved final plat for the Project and provided proof of 

the same to the City.  

 

22) Sewer, Water, and Drainage Facilities On Site Considered Private, Developer to 

Maintain.   The parties agree that all sewer, water, and drainage facilties within the site 

shall be considered private facilities and all maintenance will be the exclusive 

responsibility of Developer pursuant to a maintenance agreement to be mutually 

negoatiated and approved with the City. The parties agree that the Developer shall be 

responsible for maintenance of these private facilities up to and including connection to 

the City main.  Developer shall maintain all stormwater management infrastructure on the 

site in compliance with the Rice Creek Watershed maintenance agreement, referenced in 

paragraph 12 of this Agreement.  Should Developer fail to maintain the sewer, water or 

drainage facilities, the City shall provide Developer with notice of this failure and a 

reasonable opportunity to cure, provided the same is not less than thirty (30) days, except 

in emergency situations.  During the term of this Agreement, should Developer fail to 

cure the maintenance violation within the reasonable time provided by the City, 

Developer hereby consents to allow the City to enter the site and abate such violations.  

Developer further agrees that the City may then assess any and all reasonable actual costs 

of that abatement to the Subject Property, and Developer hereby waives any right of 

appeal to such an assessment (other than relative to the costs thereof not being reasonable 

or actual), but such waiver is only of any right to appeal such an assessment.     



 

 

 

23) Sidewalk Maintenance.   In addition to all other maintenance obligations contained 

herein or within the Site Improvement Plan, Developer shall also be responsible for 

maintenance of the proposed sidewalks/trails to be constructed within the Subject 

Property and any City or County right-of-way along 81st Avenue NE and Central Avenue, 

as a part of this Project.  These sidewalks/trails will be open to the public, but considered 

private for maintenance purposes and all maintenance will be the exclusive responsibility 

of Developer pursuant to a maintenance agreement to be mutually negoatiated and 

approved with the City.  This maintenance obligation includes, but is not limited to, snow 

removal and replacement of damaged panels.   

 

24) Replacement Infiltration Feature Required.    An existing stormwater infiltration 

feature is located along the south side of 81st Avenue NE, east of TH65.  The proposed 

grading, sidewalk, and landscaping impact the existing infiltration feature.  Developer 

shall be responsible for providing a replacement infiltration feature acceptable to the Rice 

Creek Watershed District. 

 

25) Site and Building Signage.    Site and building signage shall comply with all provisions 

of City Code including, but not limited to, §153.080 - §153.088 et seq. of the Spring Lake 

Park Code of Ordinances, as may be amended from time to time.  The existing billboard 

on the Subject Property shall be removed as a part of the Project.  Developer shall submit 

plans for the four proposed freestanding signs on the Subject Property and apply for sign 

permits for all signage on the Subject Property.   

 

26) Public Safety Access.    Developer shall submit truck turning movement documentation 

to the reasonable satisfaction of the City demonstrating that a “fire truck” of the 

dimensions provided by the City can satisfactorily make turning movements to service 

the Subject Property. 

 

27) Amendment of Agreement.   This Agreement represents the entire agreement of the 

parties and may not be amended except in writing and executed by both parties.  

 



 

 

28) Agreement Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon and extend to the 

representatives, heirs, successors and assigns of the parties hereto.  Notwithstanding 

anything to the contrary herein, this Agreement shall terminate once the Maintenance 

Bond is released and returned to Developer in accordance with paragraph 4 of this 

Agreement.  However, Developer’s indemnification obligations set forth in paragraph 38 

of this Agreement shall survive termination of this Agreement.   

 

29) Incorporation of Recitals.  The recital paragraphs set forth at the beginning of this 

Agreement are incorporated as part of this Agreement as though fully set forth herein. 

 

30) Headings.  Descriptive headings are for convenience only and shall not control or affect 

the meaning or construction of any provision of this Agreement. 

 

31) Incorporation by Reference.  All exhibits and other documents attached hereto or 

referred to herein are hereby incorporated in and shall become a part of this Agreement. 

 

32) Governing Law.  The laws of the State of Minnesota shall govern all issues relating to 

this Agreement. 

 

33) Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of 

which shall be deemed to be an original. 

 

34) Force Majeure.  If Developer shall be delayed or hindered in or prevented from the 

performance of any act required hereunder by reason of an event of Force Majeure, the 

period for the performance of any such act shall be extended for a period equivalent to 

the period of such delay.  “Force Majeure” shall mean:  flood, fire, tornado, earthquake or 

other casualty or natural disaster; war or national emergency; governmental moratoria, 

restrictions and limitations; injunctions or other similar legal actions related to the 

Subject Property; adverse weather conditions; strikes or other labor troubles; scarcity or 

unavailability of fuel, labor or materials; or any other cause beyond the reasonable 

control of Developer. 

 

35) Rights Cumulative.   Each right, power or remedy herein conferred on either party is 

cumulative in addition to every other right, power or remedy expressed or implied, now 

or hereafter arising, available to the City or Developer, at law or in equity, or under any 

other agreement, and each and every right, power or remedy herein set forth or otherwise 

so existing may be exercised from time to time as often and in such order as may be 

deemed expedient by the City or Developer and it shall not be a waiver of the right to 

exercise it at any other time thereinafter, or any other right, power or remedy. 

 

36) Severability.   In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement 

shall be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, the validity, legality and 

enforceability of the remaining provisions contained herein and any other application 

thereof shall not, in any way, be affected or impaired thereby. 

 



 

 

37) Violation of Agreement.   In the event the Developer, or its successors or assigns, 

violates any of the covenants and agreements herein contained, unless this Agreement 

specifies a different amount of time, the City shall give Developer 30 days mailed notice 

thereof.  If such default is not cured within the 30 day period, the City is hereby granted 

the right and privilege to declare the contract terminated.  If the default cannot reasonably 

be cured within said 30 day period, and the Developer has given the City written notice 

of such fact, and if work on the cure in fact has been commenced within such 30 day 

period and the Developer is proceeding continuously and diligently in accomplishing the 

cure, the 30 day period shall be extended for an additional period necessary to cure the 

default but in no event shall the period be extended more than an additional 30 days.  If 

the default continues after that period, the City may then, immediately, and without 

notice or consent of the Developer, use all of the deposited escrow funds, Letter of Credit 

or other surety funds to complete the Developer’s obligations as set forth herein, whether 

or not related to escrow items and to bring legal action against the Developer to collect 

any sums due to the City pursuant to this Agreement.   

 

38) Indemnification.     The Developer shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City, 

its officers, employees, agents and others acting on its behalf from any and all loss, claim, 

damage, liability, cost, and expense of any kind whatsoever, including reasonable 

attorneys’ fees, arising out of Developer’s (and its officers, employees, contractors or 

agents, or any other person or entity for whose acts or omissions constituting negligence 

or willful misconduct the Developer is legally responsible) negligence, and/or willful 

misconduct in the performance of its obligations under this Agreement and the operation 

of the Project thereafter, only for events first arising during the term of this Agreement, 

except and then to the extent  the same are caused by the City’s or its employees’ or 

contractors’ negligence, and/or willful misconduct, for which the City hereby agrees to 

indemnify, defend and hold harmless Developer for any loss, claims, damages, actions, 

lawsuits, costs or expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees arising therefrom. 

 

39) Attorneys’ Fees.   The unsuccessful party shall pay the successful party’s reasonable 

attorneys’ fees to be fixed by the Court in the event a suit or action is brought to enforce 

the terms of this Agreement.  

 

40) In the event Developer does not close on the purchse of the Subject Property, this 

Agreement shall be void and of no further force and effect. 

 

[signature pages follow] 



 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first 

written above. 

 

 

 

      HY-VEE, INC., 

      an Iowa corporation 

        

       By:______________________________ 

              Jeffrey Markey 

        

       Its: Sr. Vice President  

 

       Date:__________________ 

 

 

       By: ______________________________ 

             Nathan Allen 

        

       Its: Assistant Secretary 

 

       Date: __________________ 

   

       

STATE OF IOWA          ) 

            ) ss. 

COUNTY OF POLK          ) 

 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ________ day of 

_____________, 2017, by Jeffrey Markey, the Sr. Vice President and Nathan Allen, the 

Assistant Secretary of Hy-Vee, Inc., an Iowa corporation, on behalf of the corporation. 

 

 

        ____________________________ 

        Notary Public 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 

 

 

Date______________     By:  ____________________________ 

        Its Mayor 

 

 

Date______________     By:  ____________________________ 

        Its Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

 

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 

    ) ss. 

COUNTY OF HENNEPIN ) 

 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledge before me this _________ day of 

____________, 2017, by Cindy Hansen, the Mayor and Daniel R. Buchholtz, the City 

Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer of the City of Spring Lake Park, a municipal corporation under 

the laws of Minnesota, on behalf of said municipal corporation. 

 

 

      __________________________________________ 

      Notary Public 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY: 

John J. Thames, Esq. 

Carson, Clelland & Schreder 

6300 Shingle Creek Pkwy, Suite 305 

Minneapolis, MN 55430 

(763) 561-2800 



 

 

EXHIBIT A 

(collectively the “Subject Property”) 

 

 PID #01-30-24-24-0038 
 

That part of Lot 7, Auditor’s Subdivision No. 152, Anoka County, Minnesota, lying Easterly of 

State Highway 65, except that part described as follows: 

 

Beginning at a point on the South line of said Lot 7, distant 570.35 feet Westerly of the Southeast 

corner of the Northwest Quarter of Section 1, Township 30, Range 24; thence Northerly, 

perpendicular to said South line, 119.00 feet; thence on a tangential curve to the left 74.96 feet; 

radius on said curve is 107.37 feet; thence tangent to last described curve 6.07 feet; thence on a 

tangential curve to the right 58.77 feet; radius of said curve is 180.23 feet; thence Westerly, 

parallel with said South line, 68.22 feet to the Easterly right of way line of said Highway 65; 

thence Southwesterly, along said right of way line, to said South line; thence Easterly, along said 

South line, to the point of beginning. 

 

EXCEPT THE FOLLOWING: 

 

That part of Lot 7, Auditor's Subdivision No. 152 described as follows: 

 

Beginning at a point on the South line of the Northwest Quarter of Section 1, Township 30, 

Range 24, Anoka County, Minnesota, distant 570.35 feet West of the Southeast comer of said 

Northwest Quarter; thence North perpendicular to said South line a distance of 119.00 feet; 

thence Northwesterly on a tangential curve to the left having a radius of 107.37 feet (delta angle 

of 40 degrees 00 minutes) a distance of 74.96 feet; thence Northwesterly tangent to said curve a 

distance of 6.07 feet; thence Northerly on a tangential curve to the right having a radius of 

180.23 feet (delta angle of 18 degrees 40 minutes 58 seconds) a distance of 58.77 feet; thence 

East parallel with said South line 133.86 feet; thence South perpendicular to said South line a 

distance of 243.00 feet to the said South line of the Northwest Quarter; thence Westerly to the 

point of beginning, according to the recorded plat thereof, Anoka County, Minnesota. 

 

PID #01-30-24-24-0039 

 

That part of Lot 7, Auditor’s Subdivision No. 152, Anoka County, Minnesota, described as 

follows: 

 

Beginning at a point on the South line of the Northwest Quarter of Section 1, Township 30, 

Range 24 Anoka County, Minnesota, distant 570.35 feet West of South line of said Northwest 

Quarter; thence North perpendicular to said South line a distance of 119.00 feet; thence 

Northwesterly along a tangential curve to the left having a radius of 107.37 feet (delta angle of 

40 degrees 00 minutes) a distance of 74.96 feet; thence Northwesterly tangent to said curve  a 

distance of 6.07 feet, thence Northerly along a tangential curve to the right having a radius of 

180.23 feet (delta angle of 18 degrees 40 minutes 58 seconds) a distance of 58.77 feet; thence 

East parallel with said South line 133.86 feet; thence South perpendicular to said South line 

243.00 feet to said South line; thence Westerly to point of beginning, except road, subject to 



 

 

easement of record. 

 

PID #01-30-24-24-0002 

 

That part of Lot 7, Auditor’s Subdivision No. 152, Anoka County, Minnesota, described as 

follows: 

 

Beginning at a point on South line of Northwest Quarter of Section 1, Township 30, Range 24 

570.35 feet West of the Southeast corner thereof; thence North perpendicular to said South line 

119 feet; thence Northwesterly along a tangential curve to the left having a radius of 107.37 feet 

(delta angle of 40 degrees 00 minutes) a distance of 74.96 feet; thence Northwesterly tangent to 

said curve 6.07 feet; thence Northerly along a tangential curve to right having a radius of 180.23 

feet (delta angel of 18 degrees 40 minutes 58 seconds) a distance of 58.77 feet; thence West 

parallel with said South line 68.22 feet to Easterly right of way line of Trunk Highway 65; thence 

Southwesterly along said Easterly right of way line to said South line; thence East along said 

South line to point of beginning, excluding roads, subject to easement of record. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

Schedule 1 (Schedule 1 will be updated upon receipt of updated plans) 

 

 

 

Sheet C-3.0   Site Plan, Prepared by Alliant Engineering  [7/6/17] 

Sheet C-4.0   Grading, Drainage and Erosion Control Plan, Prepared by Alliant  

    Engineering      [7/6/17] 

Sheet C-5.0   Utility Plan, Prepared by Alliant Engineering [7/6/17] 

Sheet L-1.0   Landscape Plan, Prepared by Alliant Engineering [7/6/17] 

Sheet P-1.0   Photometric Plan, Prepared by Alliant Engineering [7/6/17] 

Sheets A-6.0 and A-6.1 Exterior Elevations, Prepared by Hy-Vee  [7/6/17] 

 

 



 

 

Exhibit “B” 

 

See Attached 

 

 



Acres: 11.83

WAC/SAC Units: 25 The number of units is an estimate. Number of SAC units to be determined by Met Council Environmental Services, WAC units determined by City

I. Platting and Related Costs/Fees Owed: Cost Per Acre/Unit/Lot Cash Notes

A. WAC fee 945.00$                                                             23,625.00$          per unit

B. SAC fee (MCES) 2,485.00$                                                          62,125.00$          per unit

C. SAC fee (City) 75.00$                                                               1,875.00$            per unit

E. Park Dedication 60,000.00$                                                        60,000.00$          total for site (3% of Fair Market Land Value) 

Total Commerical Fees: 63,505.00$                                                        147,625.00$        

Improvement Related Costs: Cash Notes

A. Administrative 21,450.00$          3% of Constr-public improvements

II. Letter of Credit (LOC) Cash Escrow Notes

B. Engineering

Stantec - Onsite Field Inspection 10,000.00$          City Engineer - contract

Stantec - Plan Review 5,000.00$            City Engineer - contract

Watershed Permit Fee -$                     Developers Cost - Direct to RCWD

C. Environmental 

D. Legal 3,000.00$            City Attorney - contract

E. Planning 1,000.00$            City Planner 

F. Finance -$                     City not financing

G. Site cleanup escrow -$                     

H. Construction

1 WCA/Mitigation - credits N/A

2 Site - grading 23,660.00$                                                        $2,000/acre

3 Landscaping $50,000

4 Erosion Control 10,000.00$                                                        

5 Lighting 10,000.00$                                                        

6 Site and Building Signage 10,000.00$                                                        

7 Sidewalk Installation and Maintenance $50,000 public improvement

8 Traffic Impact Mitigation $500,000 public improvement

9 Site Restoration $25,000

10 Street Improvements - patching $30,000 public improvement

11 Utility Improvements - storm sewer $100,000 public improvement

12 Utility Improvements - water main $15,000 public improvement

13 Sanitary Sewer $20,000 public improvement

Improvement Subtotals: 843,660.00$                                                      19,000.00$          

LOC/Escrow/Fees required: LOC* Cash

A. Letter of Credit (LOC ) 1,054,575.00$                                                   125% of LOC Subtotal

B. Cash Escrow 20,900.00$          110% of Cash Escrow Subtotal

III. C. Fees 147,625.00$        

D. Administrative 21,450.00$          

Total LOC and Cash required 1,054,575.00$                                                   189,975.00$        

*additional 3 yr maintenance bond will also be required for landscaping (begins after construction on public improvements completed)

Exhibit B - Hy-Vee Planned Unit Development 



 
Memorandum 
To:   Mayor Hansen and Members of the City Council 

From:  Daniel R. Buchholtz, MMC, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

Date:  January 11, 2018 

Subject: Utility and Sidewalk Access and Maintenance Agreement 
 
Included with this memorandum is the Utility and Sidewalk Access and Maintenance Agreement 
between the City of Spring Lake Park and Hy-Vee. 
 
This agreement provides the developer with access to the City’s right-of-way for construction of a 
sidewalk on the property.  The sidewalk is available for use by the general public.  The developer 
agrees to maintain and repair the sidewalk, as well as plow and maintain the sidewalk.   
 
The agreement also states that the sanitary sewer, water, and storm sewer infrastructure within the 
site, up to and including the connection to the City main, are considered private facilities.  The 
developer is responsible for all maintenance.  The agreement spells out the process to ensure a 
maintenance issue is corrected if the developer fails to cure a maintenance violation. 
 
The agreement also requires the developer and its successors to indemnify, hold the City harmless 
and defend the City from any loss, claims, damages, actions, lawsuits, costs of expenses related to 
the developer’s negligence and/or willful misconduct in the performance of its obligations under 
the agreement. 
 
City Attorney Thames will be at the meeting to answer any questions you may have regarding this 
agreement.  If you have any questions in advance of the meeting, please don’t hesitate to contact 
me at 763-784-6491. 





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[space above reserved for recording information] 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

UTILITY AND SIDEWALK ACCESS AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 

 

This Utility and Sidewalk Access and Maintenance Agreement (this “Agreement”) is 

made this _____ day of __________, 2017, (“Effective Date”) by and among Hy-Vee, Inc., an 

Iowa corporation (“Developer”), and the City of Spring Lake Park, Minnesota (“City”), 

collectively (the “parties”). 

 

RECITALS: 

 

A. Developer is the fee owner of that certain real property located in the City of 

Spring Lake Park, Minnesota, legally described on Exhibit A attached to this Agreement 

(“Developer Parcel”); and 

B. City is the fee owner of that certain publically traveled right-of-way, known as 

81st Avenue NE, in the City of Spring Lake Park Minnesota, identified on the survey attached to 

this Agreement as Exhibit B (“City Right of Way”); and 

C. Developer plans to construct and operate a sidewalk in the City Right of Way 

adjacent to 81st Avenue NE, and a sidewalk adjacent to TH65, and a bituminous trail across the 

Developer Parcel (collectively the “Sidewalks”) and sanitary sewer, water, and drainage facilities 

and infrastructure (“Developer’s Utilities”) on the Developer Parcel, in the City Right of Way, 

and in the County Right of Way, in accordance with site plans approved by the City (the 

Sidewalks and Developer’s Utilities are hereinafter sometimes referred to as the 

“Improvements”); and 

D. Developer and City want to enter into this Agreement for the purposes of 

providing Developer access to the City Right of Way and describing the Developer’s continuing 

maintenance obligations regarding the Sidewalks and Developer’s Utilities. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the Recitals, which are hereby made a part hereof, 

and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 

acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

 



 

-2- 

1. Use and Access of the Sidewalks. The Sidewalks shall be available for non-

exclusive pedestrian ingress and egress by the general public. City hereby grants a non-exclusive 

permanent easement to Developer, its contractors, subcontractors, agents, and successors and 

assigns on to the City Right of Way for the purposes of ingress, egress, and access to the 

Sidewalk, which includes ingress and egress for construction related activities and the 

maintenance obligations described in Section 2 of this Agreement. 

 

2. Maintenance of Sidewalk.  Developer agrees, at Developer’s sole cost and 

expense, to maintain and repair the Sidewalks as necessary for the intended use of the Sidewalks 

as set forth herein.  This maintenance obligation includes, but is not limited to, snow removal, 

obstruction removal, and replacement of damaged panels or bituminous surface.  Developer also 

agrees to cut, trim, or remove from the Sidewalks trees, shrubs, or other vegetation or 

improvements as in Developer’s reasonable judgment are unreasonably interfering with the use 

of the Sidewalks.   

 

3. Maintenance of Developer’s Utilities and City Access.  Developer 

acknowledges, and the parties agree, that all sanitary sewer, water, and drainage facilities and 

infrastructure within the site plan approved by the City are considered private facilities and 

infrastructure.  Developer agrees that Developer shall be responsible for these private facilities 

and infrastructure up to and including connection of the same to the City main.  Developer shall 

maintain all stormwater management infrastructure on the site in compliance with the 

maintenance agreement between Developer and the Rice Creek Watershed District.  Should 

Developer fail to maintain Developer’s Utilities, the City shall provide Developer with notice of 

this failure and a reasonable opportunity to cure.  Should Developer fail to cure the maintenance 

violation within the reasonable period of time provided by the City, Developer hereby consents to 

allow the City to enter the Developer Parcel and grants access to any facilities or infrastructure 

located there or in the City Right of Way to abate such violations.  Developer further agrees that 

the City may then assess any and all reasonable, actual costs of that abatement to the Developer 

Parcel, and Developer hereby waives any right of appeal to such an assessment (other than 

relative to the cost thereof not being reasonable or actual), but such waiver is only of any right to 

appeal such an assessment.   

 

4. Indemnification.  Developer, and its successors and assigns, agrees to indemnify, 

hold harmless and defend the City, its officers, employees, agents and others acting on its behalf, 

from any loss, claims, damages, actions, lawsuits, costs or expenses, including reasonable 

attorneys’ fees arising out of any injury or death of any person, or damage to any property arising 

out of Developer’s (and its officers, employees, contractors or agents, or any other person or 

entity for whose acts or omissions constituting negligence or willful misconduct the Developer is 

legally responsible) negligence, and/or willful misconduct in the performance of its obligations 

under this Agreement and the construction and operation of the Improvements thereafter, only for 

events first arising during the term of this Agreement, except and then to the extent  the same are 

the result of the City’s or its employees’ or contractors’ negligence, and/or willful misconduct, 

for which the City hereby agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless Developer for any loss, 

claims, damages, actions, lawsuits, costs or expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees arising 

therefrom.  

 



 

-3- 

5. Notices.  Any notice required or permitted hereunder shall be deemed given upon 

actual delivery or refusal to accept delivery, and shall be given (a) by personal delivery upon an 

authorized representative of a party hereto; or (b) by United States registered or certified mail, 

return receipt requested, postage prepaid; or  (c) by nationally recognized, reputable overnight 

courier (e.g., FedEx, UPS), properly addressed as follows: 

 If to Developer: Hy-Vee, Inc 

     5820 Westown Parkway,  

                  West Des Moines, IA 50266 

 Attn: Real Estate Dept. 

 

Copy to:  Hy-Vee, Inc 

     5820 Westown Parkway,  

                  West Des Moines, IA 50266 

   Attn: Legal Dept. 

 

 If to City: City of Spring Lake Park 

  1301 81st Avenue N.E. 

  Spring Lake Park, Minnesota 55432 

  Attention: City Administrator 

 

 With a Copy to: Carson, Clelland & Schreder 

  6300 Shingle Creek Parkway, Suite #305 

  Minneapolis, Minnesota 55430 

  Attention: John J. Thames 

 

6. Amendment, Modification or Waiver.  No amendment, modification or waiver of 

any condition, provision or term of this Agreement shall be valid or of any effect unless said 

amendment is made in writing, signed by the parties to be bound or their duly authorized 

representative(s) and specifying with particularity the extent and nature of such amendment, 

modification or waiver.  Any waiver by any party of any default of another party hereunder shall not 

affect or impair any right arising from any subsequent default.    

 

7. Headings.  The headings of sections of this Agreement are for convenience of 

reference only and do not form a part hereof and in no way interpret or construe such paragraphs. 

 

8. Authority.  The undersigned each represent that they are authorized to act for and 

bind their respective parties.   

 

9. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which 

shall be deemed an original, but which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.   

 

10. Integration.  This Agreement is the entire agreement between the parties with 

respect to its subject matter and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings between the 

parties hereto with respect to such subject matter.   

 



 

-4- 

11. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is held to be unenforceable or 

void, such provision shall be deemed to be severable and shall in no way affect the validity of the 

remaining terms of this Agreement. 

 

12. Governing Law.  This Agreement will be governed and construed in accordance 

with the laws of Minnesota, without giving effect to choice of law provisions under Minnesota law. 

 

13. Agreement Effect. This Agreement shall run with the land (Developer Parcel) 

and be binding upon and extend to the representatives, heirs, successors and assigns of the parties 

hereto.   

 

[Signature Pages to follow.] 



 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Agreement as of the date 

first above written. 

 

 

      HY-VEE, INC., 

      an Iowa corporation 

        

       By:______________________________ 

              Jeffrey Markey, Sr. Vice President 

        

        

       By: ______________________________ 

                   Nathan Allen, Assistant Secretary 

 

       Date: __________________ 

   

       

STATE OF IOWA ) 

   ) ss. 

COUNTY OF POLK ) 

 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ________ day of 

_____________, 2017, by Jeffrey Markey, Sr. Vice President, and Nathan Allen, the Assistant 

Secretary, of Hy-Vee, Inc., an Iowa corporation, on behalf of the corporation. 

 

        ____________________________ 

        Notary Public 

 

 

 



 

 

 

CITY: 

 

City of Spring Lake Park 

 

 

By:    

Name: Cindy Hanson 

Title: Mayor 

 

AND 

 

By:    

Name: Daniel R. Buchholtz 

Title: Administrator/Clerk/Treasurer 

 

 

STATE OF MINNESOTA  ) 

    ) ss. 

COUNTY OF ___________  ) 

 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledge before me this _________ day of 

____________, 2017, by Cindy Hansen, the Mayor and Daniel R. Buchholtz, the City 

Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer of the City of Spring Lake Park, a municipal corporation under 

the laws of Minnesota, on behalf of said municipal corporation. 

 

 

 

   

 Notary Public 

 

 

 

THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY: 

John J. Thames, Esq. 

Carson, Clelland & Schreder 

6300 Shingle Creek Pkwy, Suite 305 

Minneapolis, MN 55430 

(763) 561-2800 

 

 



 

 

EXHIBIT A 

(collectively the “Developer Parcel”) 

 

PID #01-30-24-24-0038 
 

That part of Lot 7, Auditor’s Subdivision No. 152, Anoka County, Minnesota, lying Easterly of 

State Highway 65, except that part described as follows: 

 

Beginning at a point on the South line of said Lot 7, distant 570.35 feet Westerly of the Southeast 

corner of the Northwest Quarter of Section 1, Township 30, Range 24; thence Northerly, 

perpendicular to said South line, 119.00 feet; thence on a tangential curve to the left 74.96 feet; 

radius on said curve is 107.37 feet; thence tangent to last described curve 6.07 feet; thence on a 

tangential curve to the right 58.77 feet; radius of said curve is 180.23 feet; thence Westerly, 

parallel with said South line, 68.22 feet to the Easterly right of way line of said Highway 65; 

thence Southwesterly, along said right of way line, to said South line; thence Easterly, along said 

South line, to the point of beginning. 

 

EXCEPT THE FOLLOWING: 

 

That part of Lot 7, Auditor's Subdivision No. 152 described as follows: 

 

Beginning at a point on the South line of the Northwest Quarter of Section 1, Township 30, 

Range 24, Anoka County, Minnesota, distant 570.35 feet West of the Southeast comer of said 

Northwest Quarter; thence North perpendicular to said South line a distance of 119.00 feet; 

thence Northwesterly on a tangential curve to the left having a radius of 107.37 feet (delta angle 

of 40 degrees 00 minutes) a distance of 74.96 feet; thence Northwesterly tangent to said curve a 

distance of 6.07 feet; thence Northerly on a tangential curve to the right having a radius of 180.23 

feet (delta angle of 18 degrees 40 minutes 58 seconds) a distance of 58.77 feet; thence East 

parallel with said South line 133.86 feet; thence South perpendicular to said South line a distance 

of 243.00 feet to the said South line of the Northwest Quarter; thence Westerly to the point of 

beginning, according to the recorded plat thereof, Anoka County, Minnesota. 

 

PID #01-30-24-24-0039 

 

That part of Lot 7, Auditor’s Subdivision No. 152, Anoka County, Minnesota, described as 

follows: 

 

Beginning at a point on the South line of the Northwest Quarter of Section 1, Township 30, 

Range 24 Anoka County, Minnesota, distant 570.35 feet West of South line of said Northwest 

Quarter; thence North perpendicular to said South line a distance of 119.00 feet; thence 

Northwesterly along a tangential curve to the left having a radius of 107.37 feet (delta angle of 40 

degrees 00 minutes) a distance of 74.96 feet; thence Northwesterly tangent to said curve  a 

distance of 6.07 feet, thence Northerly along a tangential curve to the right having a radius of 

180.23 feet (delta angle of 18 degrees 40 minutes 58 seconds) a distance of 58.77 feet; thence 

East parallel with said South line 133.86 feet; thence South perpendicular to said South line 



 

 

243.00 feet to said South line; thence Westerly to point of beginning, except road, subject to 

easement of record. 

 

PID #01-30-24-24-0002 

 

That part of Lot 7, Auditor’s Subdivision No. 152, Anoka County, Minnesota, described as 

follows: 

 

Beginning at a point on South line of Northwest Quarter of Section 1, Township 30, Range 24 

570.35 feet West of the Southeast corner thereof; thence North perpendicular to said South line 

119 feet; thence Northwesterly along a tangential curve to the left having a radius of 107.37 feet 

(delta angle of 40 degrees 00 minutes) a distance of 74.96 feet; thence Northwesterly tangent to 

said curve 6.07 feet; thence Northerly along a tangential curve to right having a radius of 180.23 

feet (delta angel of 18 degrees 40 minutes 58 seconds) a distance of 58.77 feet; thence West 

parallel with said South line 68.22 feet to Easterly right of way line of Trunk Highway 65; thence 

Southwesterly along said Easterly right of way line to said South line; thence East along said 

South line to point of beginning, excluding roads, subject to easement of record. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

EXHIBIT B 

 

(Survey  – Attached) 

 





 

 

 

 
City of Spring Lake Park  

Engineer’s Project Status Report 
 

 

To: Council Members and Staff  Re: Status Report for 1.16.18 Meeting       
 

From:  Phil Gravel     File No.: R-18GEN  
 

 

Note:  Updated information is shown in italics.    

 
MS4 Permit (193802936). 
Continuing to work with the Public Works Director and the Administrator on implementing the 
work plan for MS4 items.  Completed training with the Public Works Department in December.     

 
Surface Water Management Plan (193803949). 
We continue doing research for updating the local surface water management plan.  Detailed 
storm water modeling has been completed.  The model is showing flooding in areas that are 
known to flood, so the model seems to be appropriately calibrated. We are currently using the 
storm water model to evaluate proposed conditions to see what can be done to reduce flooding in 
these areas.  

 
2017 Sanitary Sewer Lining Project (193803782). 
This project includes sanitary sewer lining in the neighborhood east of Able Street and north of 
81st Avenue.  The Contractor, Visu-Sewer, has completed the lining work and the remaining 
service grout work.  Terry Randall is reviewing post-lining inspection reports.                      

 
2018 Sanitary Sewer Lining Project (19380….). 
Terry Randall has received a preliminary inspection report from a sewer televising company for 
the northeast area of the city.  A separate letter requesting authorization to prepare plans and 
solicit bids is included in the council packet.                         

 
2017-2018 Street Seal Coat Project (193803783). 
This 2-year project includes street maintenance in the neighborhood north of 81st Ave. and west 
of Monroe St. (2017) and in the neighborhood east of Monroe St., south of 81st St. and west of TH 
65 (2018).  Terry Randall will coordinate 2018 work this summer.     

 
Other issues/projects.    
 

Working with Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) for the Coon Creek Watershed District.  
 
We continue working with the Public Works Director to get final approval on the Water Supply 
Plan (DNR requirement) and on implementing the city’s Wellhead Protection Plan.  We will meet 
in early January to discuss these two documents along with well maintenance and water plant 
maintenance issues.  
 
Working with agents for cellular companies regarding facilities on the water towers.  
 
Continue working Dan and the developer regarding the Hy-Vee development.   
  
Working on site plan construction issues for the Dominium project.  Terry Randall is monitoring 
day-to-day issues on the project.    
       
Feel free to contact Harlan Olson, Phil Carlson, Jim Engfer, Mark Rolfs, Marc Janovec, Peter Allen, or me if you have 
any questions or require any additional information.   





 
CORRESPONDENCE 

  



 



































LOCAL GOVERNMENT OFFICIALS

JANUARY 31, 2018

Coon Rapids Civic Center
11155 Robinson Dr. NW
Coon Rapids, MN  55433

Agenda

6:00 p.m. Dinner
6:15 p.m. Meeting

1. Welcome/Introductions

2. Anoka County Economic Development Initiative

3. Small Cell Providers

4. Metro Governance Transparency Initiative

5. Legislative Issues



LOCAL GOVERNMENT OFFICIALS

Menu

Wells Catering

$11.25 per person

Chicken Dinner

RSVP needed by January 24, 2018
Tina Pedersen – 763-324-4607

Tina.Pedersen@co.anoka.mn.us

Please make checks payable to Anoka County



A N O K A 
C O U N T Y 
PARKS AND 
COMMUNITY 
S E R V I C E S

the connection
january • 2018 V

O
LU

M
E

 2
5 

   
IS

S
U

E
 1



-   2   -

CONTENTS

From the Division Manager 3

EVENTS AND UPDATES

County Funding Helps Municipal Recycling 4

New Landscape Planner 4

Oak Wilt Management 6

Lunch With A Naturalist 6

Annual Season Pass Sale 6

Preparing For The Ski Season 5

Winter Equipment Rental 5

Employee Profiles 7



-   3   -

FROM THE DIVISION MANAGER:
January in Minnesota is not for the faint of heart and neither is working in one of our five 
License Centers. 

Many of our readers are well aware of the difficulties the new Minnesota Licensing and 
Registration System (MNLARS) has caused our citizens and staff. Like the cold and icy 
Minnesota landscape, this transition has been anything but smooth. 

Even though the conditions can be harsh, there is always something alluring about the sparkle 
in the snow or the icicles hanging from a tree. That’s how I think about our License Bureau 
staff. It doesn’t matter how challenging things seem at times, they are the shining lights that 
have helped the citizens of Anoka County through some of the most difficult months in License 
Bureau history. 

Seemingly simple tasks, like getting your vehicle registration updated or your title transferred, 
have become frustrating and complex, yet our staff continue to show compassion, empathy 
and kindness to every customer as they navigate through the “detours and construction zones” 
of this program called MNLARS.

Their empathy and kindness doesn’t end there. Even with all the difficulties they are 
experiencing, they continue to give. Beginning October 23, the License and Passport Centers, 
as well as the Recycling & Resource Solutions Department, conducted a food drive and 
collected a total of 329 pounds of food and $610.05 in cash donations for the ACBC Food 
Shelf. 

That was immediately followed by a toy drive, where a total of 165 toys and $705.50 in cash 
donations were collected and donated to Toys for Joy. Many of the staff also reached out 
individually by adopting a senior citizen through Granny’s Closet.

Much like a cup of hot chocolate on a cold winter day, thinking about the kindness and 
generosity displayed by our License Bureau staff warms the heart.

It’s time to put on my jacket and boots and go for a hike. Until next time, I’ll see you the trail.

John VonDeLinde



-   4   -

NEW LANDSCAPE PLANNER

COUNTY FUNDING HELPS MUNICIPAL  
RECYCLING

Anoka County recently hired a new landscape 
planner. Jacob (Jake) Thompson started on December 
11, 2017, and joins the park planner and landscape 
architect in the Park Planning Unit. Jacob came from 
Abrahamson Nurseries, where he managed projects, 
including estimating, working with clients, designing 
residential and commercial landscapes and managing 
installation. He graduated from the University of 
Kentucky with a Bachelor’s in Landscape Architecture 
and is working on obtaining his Landscape Architect 
licensure. Jake is currently learning all about the 
park and trail system and will be working on a few 
wayfinding projects to start.

The Anoka County Board recently approved the 2018 
municipal funding allocations for residential recycling 
programs. The County provides funding from the 
following programs: Select Committee on Recycling 
and Environment (SCORE) funds, Local Recycling 
Development Grant (LRDG) funds received from the 
state, and the county Solid Waste Management charge 
to the 21 municipalities within Anoka County.

Each municipality receives $10,000 in base funding plus 
$5 per household. They can request additional money 
for enhancements in specific categories, such as drop-
off events, recycling center operations, park and event 
recycling, organics collection, multi-family recycling and 
promotion. These categories were added in 2013 to 
increase flexibility in the funding system and incentivize 
efforts which go above and beyond basic program 
requirements.

The County sets recycling tonnage goals for each municipality to help reach the 75% recycling 
rate by 2030 as established in the state policy plan, the Anoka County Solid Waste Master 
Plan, and state law. The Recycling & Resource Solutions Department meets monthly with 
local recycling coordinators and haulers to strategize on ways to improve municipal recycling 
programs. 

New loading pad at the East Bethel 
Recycling Center for loading recyclables 
to be shipped to market. Improvements 
were made possible with LRDG funding.



-   5   -

PREPARING FOR THE SKI SEASON
Each fall before frost sets in, many hours are invested in preparing 
ski trail corridors, facilities, and equipment for the ski season.  

Each trail is assessed for needs in tree work, mowing, signage, 
grading and other concerns. Parkkeepers remove hazardous trees 
that pose a risk to skiers or equipment and prune low and damaged 
limbs. A flail mower establishes the trail width and alignment 
before each trail receives a fine mowing with a rotary turf mower. 
Seasonal trailhead and directional signs are placed to define the 
trails and banners directing skiers to facilities. Washouts, ruts and 
bottlenecks in corridors are corrected and sometimes alignments 
are shifted to improve the skiing experience. Culvert and gate repair 
and improvements are examples of other work needing to be done. 

Trail groomers, trailers and vehicles are gone over thoroughly by 
parks operators and fleet services technicians to ensure everything is 
in proper order. Once snow arrives, operators roll trails to compress 
snow and hold it in place to begin the base-building process. 
Depending on the moisture content of the snow, it can take eight 
to twelve inches to build an adequate base to groom quality tracked 
trails. Parkkeepers did an outstanding job of preparing the trails for 
the 2017-2018 ski season. Now we just need nature to cooperate.

OAK WILT MANAGEMENT
Each year the natural resource crew addresses the oak 
wilt problem with a three step process. In August, the 
crew conducts a ground survey to identify, inventory 
and mark oak wilt sites in the parks. Starting in October 
the crew visits the sites with the vibratory plow (V-plow) 
in order to cut the root grafts between healthy and 
diseased trees. This inhibits the main mode of disease 
spread once oak wilt has entered an area. The third step 
begins in early December when the natural resource 
crew enlists the help of several Parkkeepers to assist 
with the removal and sanitation of diseased trees. This 
year, the logging crew will be in the field throughout winter until the end of March to remove 
not only diseased trees, but also hazard trees, trees at hole #3 at Chomonix that hinder play, 
and trees that are currently blocking drainage ditches that move water away from the Rice 
Creek Campground. Wood generated by these activities is made into firewood for sale at the 
campgrounds and for the public firewood sale if there is a surplus.



-   6   -

LUNCH WITH A NATURALIST

ANNUAL SEASON PASS SALE

Looking for some good lunchtime education and 
entertainment? Bring your lunch to Wargo Nature 
Center’s monthly lunch with a naturalist series. 
Designed for adults, this event includes free 
presentations on local natural history and often, 
a leisurely stroll along the trails. The lunch with a 
naturalist program has taken off since its beginning, 
with more than 30 people attending the latest 
presentation in December, which focused on owls. 
The winter 2018 session is set for January 9 (Winter 
Recreation History), February 13 (Predator and Prey), 
March 13 (Maple Syruping) and April (Birding).

The 2018 Bunker Beach Water Park Season Pass sale 
is happening now until February 9. Season passes 
offer unlimited access to Minnesota’s largest outdoor 
water park and the cardio club program. Historically 
8,000 passes have been sold online during the 
winter sale. 

WINTER EQUIPMENT RENTAL
The Parks and Recreation Department anxiously await for 
additional snow to begin cross country ski and snowshoe 
rental operations. Once conditions allow for trails to be 
groomed, Bunker Hills Regional Park, Coon Rapids Dam 
Regional Park, Chomonix Golf Course and Rum River 
Central Regional Park will host ski trails. Equipment 
rental will be available on weekends at the Bunker Hills 
Campground Visitor Center, Coon Rapids Dam Visitor 
Center and Chomonix Clubhouse. Skiers will need to have 
a valid MN DNR cross country ski pass to be on any of 
Anoka County’s ski trails. For any skier without an annual 
pass, daily passes are available for purchase at all three 
rental locations. Once open, ski trail conditions will be 
updated regularly on the County Park website and social 
media accounts.



-   7   -

 Name:  
Diane Breitbach

Position & 
Department:
License Center 
Specialist, Blaine 
License Center

Length of time in 
current role:  
20 years

Diane graduated from Spring Lake Park 
High School in 1980. Before coming to 
Anoka County, she worked at a men’s hair 
replacement office for 15 years. She then got 
a job as an accounting clerk in the Ham Lake 
License Center before becoming a license 
center specialist in our Blaine location.

In her spare time, Diane likes to read, go to 
concerts, walk and travel. 

Fun Fact:
“I am a certified Star Wars nerd!”

Name:  
Nicole Hedblum

Position & 
Department:
Passport Acceptance 
Agent

Length of time in 
current role:  
1 year 3 months

After high school, Nicole worked as a CNA 
(Certified Nursing Assistant) for about 5 
years. She started her family and was a 
stay-at-home mom for the next 8 years. 
Shortly thereafter, Nicole decided to go 
back to school and attended the Minnesota 
School of Business. She graduated with her 
Associate Degree in Business Administration. 
Currently she is attending Metropolitan State 
University, working on a Bachelor’s Degree 
in Cultural Diversity and Communications in 
Human Services. 

Nicole enjoys spending time with her family, 
especially her grandson, going on family 
vacations, camping, hiking or driving across 
the country to enjoy the scenery. She also 
enjoys reading, crafting and making her own 
beauty products. 

Fun Fact:
“I enjoy riding motorcycles, hunting, and 
fishing.”

EMPLOYEE PROFILES

































































 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
       

 
Municipal Producer, Trevor Scholl, continued to reach out to City officials and department 
contacts regarding potential programming for the channels.  He completed five projects, and 
worked toward completion of several more. Three episodes of Mayor's Minutes were produced, 
along with a Lino Lakes fire recruitment piece and a story highlighting the relationship between 
Circle Pines and Centennial Schools.  Programs were also produced by Ben Hayle, T.J. Tronson, 
and Danika Peterson.  It should be noted that while a producer's name is listed after a program, 
additional staff members often assist with the production process.  
 
 
 

Title Producer Runtime 

December 2017  CCIITTYY  REPORT  
blaine centerville circle pines ham lake lexington lino lakes spring lake park

▪ December Completed Videos/Playing on City Channels & Internet 

Video Production 

Lexington Mayor's Minutes Winter 2017 Trevor Scholl 00:05:35 

Blaine Mayor's Minutes Winter 2017 Trevor Scholl 00:06:02 

Centerville Mayor's Minutes Winter 2017 Trevor Scholl 00:06:50 

School Spotlight: Circle Pines and 
Centennial 

Trevor Scholl 00:11:28 

Lino Lakes Fire Recruitment Trevor Scholl 00:06:07 

Your City Staff: Mark Statz Danika Peterson/Ben Hayle 00:04:50 

Your City Staff: Brian Podany Danika Peterson/Ben Hayle 00:04:38 

Anoka County Board Meeting ( 12/08/17) T.J. Tronson 00:23:46 

Anoka County Board Meeting (12/19/17) T.J. Tronson 01:18:35 

North Metro Telecommunications 
Commission Meeting (12/20/17) 

T.J. Tronson 00:14:24 

 

 
 
Some projects that Trevor is working on or is scheduled to produce include: 
 
 Lino Lakes corrections facility piece/editing final project 
 Ham Lake Snow Bowl 
 Circle Pines Mayor's Minutes 
 Circle Pines road maintenance project 
 A profile on a new juice bar/yoga studio opening in Blaine 
 A volunteer dog walker piece for the Animal Humane Society 
 Contacted more local businesses regarding doing profiles 

 
 
 
 



 
 
  
 

 

 Blaine 
 12/5/17: Roark reported that the new system drawings have been delivered.  

NMTV has a link to the drawings and has printed them for a spare copy off-site.  
 Centerville  
 No equipment assistance requested or required. 

 Circle Pines  
 12/13/17: Tricaster issues. 12/12 meeting did not broadcast video due to system 

failure. The audio was transmitted so that was recorded for future playbacks with 
a technical difficulties slate. Swapped out with spare Tricaster from NMTV, but 
that didn't work either. Working to combine components of two Tricaster units to 
get a functioning "Frankencaster" for temporary use.  

 12/13/17: Contacted Z Systems to arrange meeting with Circle Pines to discuss a 
new HD system upgrade.   

 12/15/17: Re-installed repaired Tricaster.  Replaced video card.  
 12/19/17: Met with Z Systems and Patrick Antonen regarding HD upgrade.  Z 

Systems will get proposal to Patrick, based on meetings discussions by mid-
January.      

 Ham Lake  
 12/4/17: Rebooted the Carousel unit. Every few days it seems that the unit either 

freezes or shuts down and won't reboot.  Tightrope is working on the issue.  
 12/15/17: Got a message from Denise Webster about problems at Ham Lake. The 

office was closed for the weekend when Matt arrived to troubleshoot.   
 12/18/17: Denise reset the SCALA and fixed video problem. Went out to check 

on the audio problem and discovered the tuner was dead.  Power supply not 
working. Replaced the tuner with a spare. Issue resolved.  

 12/18/17: Discussed meeting for the first week of the New Year to get things 
going for the HD upgrade.  

 12/18/17: Replaced Ham Lake Carousel Unit in master control.  
 Lexington  
 No equipment assistance requested or required. 

 Lino Lakes  
 12/5/17: Sent a follow-up email to Alpha Video requesting new system drawings 

in advance of install. Originally requested one week ago but have not received. 
Alpha stated the drawings were not finished.  Want to do a thorough examination 
of the drawings pre-install.   

 12/5/17: Jeff Karlson reported that the outlets are installed at the camera 
locations.  The dais is not done yet, but Jeff will keep NMTV updated.  

 12/8/17: Received drawings for Lino upgrade. Sent copy to Jeff Karlson.   
 12/8/17: Emailed Alpha regarding Haivision encoder and decoder for Lino HD 

video transmissions.  Gave him a deadline for delivery. 
 12/12/17: Completed tear-down of old equipment in the Lino Lakes control room. 

Kept most of the wires in place for Alpha to determine if re-usable. Three and a 
half hour project.  

 12/13/17: Went to Lino Lakes and checked on the progress of the install.    
 12/15/17: Went to LIno Lakes and checked on the progress of the install.  
 12/18/17: Check on install and commissioning. All equipment in working order 

except the wireless audio-assisted listening devices.  They still must be installed.  
 12/19/17: Bought a TV for a return feed from Best Buy and a wall mount for a 

confidence monitor.  Dropped off at City Hall. 

Equipment Consulting/Technical Support 
 



 12?19/17: Noted that Expressions training is not needed as NMTV will create and 

 12/19/17: Installed Makito X Decoder and Frame Sync in master control for Lino 
Lakes HD transmissions.  

 12/19/17: Installed the Makito X encoder at Lino Lakes and provided network 
information. 

 12/19/17: Contacted network system engineer to get access from IP address 
through port for transmission of signal from Lino Lakes to NMTV head-end. The 
signal was tested and is operational. 

 12/19/17: Ordered an SDI/Analog audio embedder for LIno Lakes transmission. 
 12/21/17: Checked on project status at LIno Lakes.  The project is complete with 

the exception of the dais and audio needs that must be done before the mics can 
be installed.  

 12/22/17: Checked on project status at Lino Lakes 
 12/27/17: Installed the transmission system at Lino Lakes. Installed the embedder, 

Brightsign, HDMI convertor, KanexPro 2x1 switch and Makito X in the cooled 
rack under the workstation. Checked transmission. All working.  Checked 
cameras and made sure the4 system was installed properly. Will need to come 
back and make adjustments to the cameras.  Video levels not ideal.  Will also 
have to check audio levels once whole system installation is complete.   

 Spring Lake Park  
 12/15/17: System outputting a frozen image but the audio is working. Will have to 

troubleshoot.  
 12/18/17: Reset the Makito X decoder and fixed the frozen image.  

 
 
  

 
 

  
 
 
Programming Coordinator, Michele Silvester, along with help from Eric Houston and 
Tarkor Zehn, is responsible for processing and scheduling the programming on the City 
channels.  There are three categories of programs that are scheduled on the City channels; 
live and replayed meetings, NMTV staff created video content, and informational 
graphics pages.  All categories of programming must be encoded, scheduled, and entered 
into the Tightrope playback system or entered into the Carousel video files.   
As each live meeting is being recorded at City Hall, it is routed to the North Metro TV 
head-end and then sent out over the cable system live. At the same time it is also encoded 
on a server for future playbacks.  The following meetings were processed in December: 
 
 
 

Title Producer Runtime 

maintain graphics needed for meetings. 

Master Control 

Blaine City Council Meeting (12/7/17) Blaine Staff 02:28:37 

Blaine Planning Commission Meeting 
(12/12/17) 

Blaine Staff 00:13:36 

Blaine Truth In Taxation Meeting (12/14/17) Blaine Staff 01:07:08 

Blaine Natural Resources Conservation 
Board Meeting (12/19/17) 

Blaine Staff 00:32:59 

Blaine City Council Meeting (12/21/17) Blaine Staff 01:54:32 

Centerville City Council Meeting (12/13/17) Centerville Staff 02:11:26 



Title cont. Producer cont. Runtime con. 
Circle Pines City Council Meeting 

(12/12/17) 
Circle Pines Staff 01:19:00 

Circle Pines Planning Commission Meeting 
(12/18/17) 

Circle Pines Staff 01:08:19 

Circle Pines Utility Commission Meeting 
(12/20/17) 

Circle Pines Staff 00:32:17 

Circle Pines City Council Meeting 
(12/26/17) 

Circle Pines Staff 01:45:17 

Ham Lake City Council Meeting (12/4/17) Ham Lake Staff 00:48:00 

Ham Lake City Council Meeting (12/18/17) Ham Lake Staff 00:23:42 

Lexington City Council Meeting (12/7/17) Lexington Staff 00:32:48 

Lexington City Council Meeting (12/21/17) Lexington Staff 00:54:47 

Lino Lakes City Council Meeting (12/11/17) Lino Lakes Staff 02:08:29 

Spring Lake Park City Council Meeting 
(12/4/17) 

Spring Lake Park 
Staff 

01:08:57 

Spring Lake Park City Council Meeting 
(12/18/17) 

Spring Lake Park 
Staff 

01:03:32 

17 New Programs  20:10:26  New 
Hours 

 
 
Meetings are scheduled for replay based on schedules requested by each City. Additional 
longer-length video programming  produced by NMTV staff is also scheduled on the 
channels.  With the arrival of the Carousel units, shorter-length videos and promos 
are loaded onto those devices, rather than being scheduled as separate playbacks.  
The short videos cycle through, with graphics pages, and play on the channels 
whenever a scheduled program is not playing.  Depending on whether a City 
selected the split screen or full screen Carousel option, the shorter videos are cycling 
24 hours a day.  The table below outlines how many times a longer-length video 
program was entered into the Tightrope system, and played back on each City channel.   
 

City Number of Times 
Programs Played 

Hours Programmed 
on Channel 

Blaine  149 180:30:43 

Centerville 37 61:28:48 

Circle Pines 202 211:08:51 

Ham Lake 68 46:14:54 

Lexington 99 76:38:13 

Lino Lakes 47 81:01:48 

Spring Lake Park 94 101:45:12 

Totals: 696 Program Playbacks 758:48:29   Hours of 
Video Programming on 

Channels 

 
 



The last category of programming on City channels consists of bulletin board, or graphics 
pages, that display information about the City or about events and issues of interest to 
citizens.  With the installation of the new Carousel units complete, Eric Houston has 
assumed responsibility for updating the information on all seven channels.  He works 
closely with each City's representative to ensure that all requested data slides are created 
and posted to the satisfaction of the City.  Even though Eric is doing the work of creating 
the data pages, the Cities will always maintain editorial control.  In addition to the 
graphics pages, the new Carousel units play video.  Eric is also responsible for encoding 
any videos that will be displayed. The following work was done for City Carousel units 
in December: 
 

 Blaine 
 Revised back-up video loop to play immediately before and after City meetings. 
 Transcoded and uploaded 3 videos to Carousel.  

 Centerville  
 Transcoded and uploaded 2 videos to Carousel.  

 Circle Pines  
 Created a substitute version of meeting for playback with on screen "no audio" 

graphic. 
 Ham Lake  
 Addressed issue with frozen Carousel Unit. 

 Lexington  
 Created 7 Carousel bulletins for upcoming City meeting dates. 

 Lino Lakes  
 Investigated and addressed improperly timed City meeting. 
 Made back-up Carousel simulation video to play at City Hall between meetings as 

part of the new HD system. 
 Contacted Lisa to determine what updates would be needed for the City Council 

slides.  
 Created 11 Carousel bulletins. 
 Edited end date for one bulletin. 

 Spring Lake Park  
 Created 1 bulletin for Carousel. 
 Created 40 bulletins for upcoming City meetings. 

 
 

City Channel Signal Monitoring 
 

 Blaine  
 No channel signal problems. 

 Centerville  
 No channel signal problems. 

 Circle Pines  
 Bad video signal. Tricaster down. Recorded audio and made technical difficulty 

graphic. 
 Ham Lake  
 Frozen Carousel. Replace with loaner while being repaired.  

 Lexington  
 No channel signal problems. 

 Lino Lakes  
 Upgrade to HD signal.  Test.  Looks great! 

 Spring Lake Park  
 No channel signal problems. 

 
 
 



 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
NMTV has created a video on demand service, with line-item bookmarking, for our 
Cities meetings.  In order to accomplish this, each encoded meeting has to undergo 
several steps.  The meeting must first be transferred and transcoded from the playback 
server to the video on demand server.  The length of time necessary for this varies based 
on the length of the meeting and whether it is recorded in SD or HD.  Once that is done, a 
staff member must go through the meeting entering a bookmark at the start of each 
meeting line-item, and type in the corresponding line-item information.  Staff utilizes 
marked agendas provided by City staff members for this step.  If marked agendas aren't 
provided by City staff we go to the City website to find unmarked agendas and place the 
meeting on VOD without bookmarks.  Once that is done and saved the bookmarked 
meeting is then linked to the NMTV website's city meeting page for video on demand. 
The following number of meetings were bookmarked and/or placed on VOD for the 
Cities in December: 
 
 Blaine 
 5 meetings bookmarked and placed on VOD. 

 Centerville  
 1 meeting placed on VOD. 

 Circle Pines  
 4 meetings bookmarked and placed on VOD. 

 Ham Lake  
 2 meetings bookmarked and placed on VOD. 

 Lexington  
 2 meetings placed on VOD. 

 Lino Lakes  
 1 meetings bookmarked and placed on VOD.  

 Spring Lake Park  
 2 meeting bookmarked and placed on VOD 

 
 
 

 
  
 
 
The issues dealt with in December include the Comcast late fee increase request, 
presenting the third quarter franchise and PEG fee calculations, and the Closed 
Captioning Study.     
 
 Comcast Late Fee Increase  

 Received a letter from Comcast requesting Commission approval of a 50 cent 
increase in their late fee.  It would increase the late fee from $9.50 to $10.00.   

 Comcast provided reports documenting the justification for the increase. 
 The Executive Committee considered the increase at the December 6th meeting. 

The Committee recommended approval of the fee increase.  
 The full Commission considered the increase at the December 20th meeting.  The 

increase was approved.  
  

  

Meetings on Demand 

Administrative 



 
 
 Third Quarter Franchise and PEG Fees  
 Calculated fee totals and compared to previous payments from last quarter and the 

same time last year 
 Discussed totals and comparisons with Operations Committee and Executive 

Committee.   
 Reported fee levels as related to expectations. 
 

 Closed Captioning Study 
 Contacted Cities for copies of Summary Budgets for 2017.   
 Completed Closed Captioning Study questionnaire and submitted for 

consideration. 
 

 Miscellaneous  
 Canceled January meetings.  





 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

December 2017  Update 
North Metro TV
 
 

 
 
          
  

Program Production 

In December, a total of 77 new programs were produced utilizing the 
North Metro facilities, funds, and services.  This constitutes 57:45:00 
hours of new programming.    
 

 30 programs were produced by the public  

 30 programs were produced by NMTV staff 

 17 programs were produced by City staff 
 
 
 
 
 
  Van Shoots 
  
The HD truck was used for 25:15:00 hours of production. Events 
produced live and recorded for additional playbacks include: 
 

 Boys Hockey: Spring Lake Park vs. Blaine 

 Girls Hockey: Blaine vs. Centennial 

 Boys Hockey: Blaine vs. Centennial 

 Boys Basketball: Blaine vs. Centennial 
 
 
 
 
 

  
Workshops 
 

Workshop Instructor Organization Students 

Special Production Series 
Class 10 

Eric Houston Blaine/Ham Lake Girl 
Scouts 

9 

Studio B Eric Houston General Public 2 

Puzzled Taping Eric Houston Video Club 3 

Special Production Series 
Class 11 

Eric Houston Blaine/Ham Lake Girl 
Scouts 

9 

Camera Eric Houston General Public 3 

Special Production Series 
Class 12 

Eric Houston Blaine/Ham Lake Girl 
Scouts 

12 

Intro to NMTV Eric Houston General Public 1 

Star Wars Holiday Special 
Lecture 

Eric Houston Video Club 14 

Editing Eric Houston General Public 3 

Special Production Series 
Class 13 

Eric Houston Blaine/Ham Lake Girl 
Scouts 

9 

10 Workshops   64 Students 

 



 
 
  Home Movie Transfers 
 
Home movie transfers have become one of our most popular services.  Residents can transfer 
their family videos themselves for free, or pay NMTV to do it.  NMTV can also transfer film, slides, 
and photos for a fee.    
 

Month Hours 
Transferred 

Tapes Film 
Reels 

DVDs Photos/
Slides 

Fees Paid 

January 205.75 58 174  46 80 $675 

February 165.75 65 41 14 672 $411 

March 131.5 41 98 45 0 $305 

April 118.5 60 34 40 0 $157.50 

May 192.25 81 58 16 473 $215 

June 207.5 70 26 65 0 $274.50 

July 179.25 83 5 41 208 $545 

August 132.5 59 69 17 0 $838 

September 166.75 61 45 22 30 $484 

October 301.25 75 150 60 2,881 $737 

November 281.5 99 124 17 3,416 $1,581 

December 222.75 97 64 74 1,388 $604 

TOTAL: 2,305.25 849 888 457 9,148 $6,827.00 

 
 
 
  
 
Public Usage Stats 

For statistical purposes, the public access department documents total numbers of unique 
individuals and total hours of usage of the facility by the general public, every month.  These 
numbers include regular users, class participants, individuals transferring videos, people who 
attend events, and any other public usage of the facility.  The numbers do not take into account 
the many members of the public who work with any other NMTV department, such as news, 
sports, outreach, or educational.    
 

Month Unique Individuals Total Usage Hours 

January 67 523.5 

February 74 461.75 

March 54 476.75 

April 71 326.5 

May 106 665 

June 95 511.25 

July 75 459.5 

August 80 501.75 

September 85 516.5 

October 106 665.5 

November 112 634.75 

December 91 473.75 

TOTAL PUBLIC USAGE:  6,216.50 

 
 
 
 
  Production Highlights 
 

NMTV News Highlights 
Each week Danika Peterson and Ben Hayle create a 
news program that highlights events, people, issues, 
and information important to citizens of our Member 
Cities.  Some December highlights include:  

 Olympic Trials Come to Blaine 
 Veteran Housing Now Open in Anoka 
 Healing through Haircuts 



 Stepping Stone Emergency Housing Makes Impact 
 Reading Corps Tutors Needed 
 Heroes and Helpers Bring Gifts and Cheer 
 

In addition to daily playbacks of North Metro TV News on the cable systems, there are over 447 
local stories archived for viewers on the NMTV YouTube page.  The page can be accessed 
through the northmetrotv.com website. 
     

Candy Land 
T.J. Tronson recorded the Centennial Middel School's performance of Candy Land in December. 
He recorded the play with several cameras and then edited the the final product. We can't put the 
plays on our channels due to copyright issues, but we do record them for the school and  make 
copies available for students and parents.   
 

Meet Your City Staff 
News Team members Danika Peterson and Ben 
Hayle, continued to produce episodes of their new 
video series called "Meet Your City Staff."  In 
December they introduced viewers new Centerville 
City Administrator, Mark Statz and new Blaine Police 
Chief Brian Podany.  The intent is to give the public 
more insight into the people who make things happen 
and the processes for getting things done in their 
communities.   
 

City HD Upgrade Update 
The City of Lino Lakes has completed the technical part of its HD upgrade.  Some work remains 
to be done on the dais, and final related connections, but the signal coming from City Hall is now 
HD.  Once Alpha Video completed the install of the new equipment, NMTV Video Engineer, 
purchased and installed the HD transmission equipment.  A Makito X encoder, Brightsign, the 
embedder, HDMI converter, and KanexPro 2x1 switch.  This equipment transmits the live HD 
signal from City Hall to the NMTV head-end.  After the equipment was installed, Matt worked with 
the City's Network Systems Engineer to obtain access to the system with an IP address and an 
assigned port. The system was tested and is functioning well.  CenturyLink was notified of the 
change in signal from SD to HD and will include the Lino Lakes channel in its next signal sweep 
for providing an HD channel for Lino Lakes.  
 

City Productions 
Municipal Producer, Trevor Scholl, completed 
five projects in December, and put a lot of work 
into several ongoing projects.  

 Blaine Mayor's MInutes Winter 2017 
 Lino Lakes Fire Recruitment 
 Centerville Mayor's MInutes Winter 2017 
 School Spotlight: Circle Pines and 

Centennial 
 Lexington Mayor's Minutes Winter 2017 

 
New and ongoing projects include: 

 Lino Lakes corrections facility piece/slated for completion in January 
 Ham Lake Snow Bowl 
 Shot Animal Humane Society piece about volunteering 
 Circle Pines road maintenance project 
 A profile on a new juice bar/yoga studio opening in Blaine 
 Contacted more local businesses regarding doing profiles 

 
Trevor touches base with contacts on a regular basis and also encourages Cities to contact him 
whenever they have an idea for a new show.    

 
 
 
 



Production equipment consulting for cities and schools  
 Blaine 

 12/5/17: Roark reported that the new system drawings have been delivered.  NMTV has 
a link to the drawings and has printed them for a spare copy off-site.  

 Centerville  
 No equipment assistance requested or required. 

 Circle Pines  
 12/13/17: Tricaster issues. 12/12 meeting did not broadcast video due to system failure. 

The audio was transmitted so that was recorded for future playbacks with a technical 
difficulties slate. Swapped out with spare Tricaster from NMTV, but that didn't work either. 
Working to combine components of two Tricaster units to get a functioning 
"Frankencaster" for temporary use.  

 12/13/17: Contacted Z Systems to arrange meeting with Circle Pines to discuss a new 
HD system upgrade.   

 12/15/17: Re-installed repaired Tricaster.  Replaced video card.  
 12/19/17: Met with Z Systems and Patrick Antonen regarding HD upgrade.  Z Systems 

will get proposal to Patrick, based on meetings discussions by mid-January.      
 Ham Lake  

 12/4/17: Rebooted the Carousel unit. Every few days it seems that the unit either freezes 
or shuts down and won't reboot.  Tightrope is working on the issue.  

 12/15/17: Got a message from Denise Webster about problems at Ham Lake. The office 
was closed for the weekend when Matt arrived to troubleshoot.   

 12/18/17: Denise reset the SCALA and fixed video problem. Went out to check on the 
audio problem and discovered the tuner was dead.  Power supply not working. Replaced 
the tuner with a spare. Issue resolved.  

 12/18/17: Discussed meeting for the first week of the New Year to get things going for the 
HD upgrade.  

 12/18/17: Replaced Ham Lake Carousel Unit in master control.  
 Lexington  

 No equipment assistance requested or required. 
 Lino Lakes  

 12/5/17: Sent a follow-up email to Alpha Video requesting new system drawings in 
advance of install. Originally requested one week ago but have not received. Alpha 
stated the drawings were not finished.  Want to do a thorough examination of the 
drawings pre-install.   

 12/5/17: Jeff Karlson reported that the outlets are installed at the camera locations.  The 
dais is not done yet, but Jeff will keep NMTV updated.  

 12/8/17: Received drawings for Lino upgrade. Sent copy to Jeff Karlson.   
 12/8/17: Emailed Alpha regarding Haivision encoder and decoder for Lino HD video 

transmissions.  Gave him a deadline for delivery. 
 12/12/17: Completed tear-down of old equipment in the Lino Lakes control room. Kept 

most of the wires in place for Alpha to determine if re-usable. Three and a half hour 
project.  

 12/13/17: Went to Lino Lakes and checked on the progress of the install.    
 12/15/17: Went to LIno Lakes and checked on the progress of the install.  
 12/18/17: Check on install and commissioning. All equipment in working order except the 

wireless audio-assisted listening devices.  They still must be installed.  
 12/19/17: Bought a TV for a return feed from Best Buy and a wall mount for a confidence 

monitor.  Dropped off at City Hall. 
 12?19/17: Noted that Expressions training is not needed as NMTV will create and 

maintain graphics needed for meetings. 
 12/19/17: Installed Makito X Decoder and Frame Sync in master control for Lino Lakes 

HD transmissions.  
 12/19/17: Installed the Makito X encoder at Lino Lakes and provided network information. 
 12/19/17: Contacted network system engineer to get access from IP address through port 

for transmission of signal from Lino Lakes to NMTV head-end. The signal was tested and 
is operational. 

 12/19/17: Ordered an SDI/Analog audio embedder for LIno Lakes transmission. 
 12/21/17: Checked on project status at LIno Lakes.  The project is complete with the 

exception of the dais and audio needs that must be done before the mics can be 
installed.  

 12/22/17: Checked on project status at Lino Lakes 
 12/27/17: Installed the transmission system at Lino Lakes. Installed the embedder, 

Brightsign, HDMI convertor, KanexPro 2x1 switch and Makito X in the cooled rack under 
the workstation. Checked transmission. All working.  Checked cameras and made sure 



the4 system was installed properly. Will need to come back and make adjustments to the 
cameras.  Video levels not ideal.  Will also have to check audio levels once whole system 
installation is complete.   

 Spring Lake Park  

 12/15/17: System outputting a frozen image but the audio is working. Will have to 
troubleshoot.  

 12/18/17: Reset the Makito X decoder and fixed the frozen image.  
 
 

City Channel 16 Playback Stats 
 

City Number of Times Programs Played Hours Programmed on 
Channel 

Blaine  149 180:30:43 

Centerville 37 61:28:48 

Circle Pines 202 211:08:51 

Ham Lake 68 46:14:54 

Lexington 99 76:38:13 

Lino Lakes 47 81:01:48 

Spring Lake Park 94 101:45:12 

Totals: 696 Program Playbacks 758:48:29   Hours of Video 
Programming on Channels 

 
 
 
 
 
Programs Produced by the Public 

 
Title Producer Runtime 

Sticks on the Ice Laurie Sigler 00:28:17 

Behind the Ice Laurie Sigler 00:24:42 

Chit Chat: Abe Yorek Sharon Carlson 00:24:47 

Off Constantly:  Weather Update David Bauer 00:00:27 

Off Constantly: Parking Ramps David Bauer 00:21:27 

Toastmasters Live! (2 episodes) Lee Howard 01:27:18 

It's Only Food with Chef John Politte ((6 
episodes) 

John Politte 00:53:12 

Every Movie Ever Made (3 episodes) Ben Daniels/Ryan 
Frieundschuh, Gavin Van 

Trease/Eric Houston 

01:10:54 

Puzzled Video Club 06:06:22 

Cornerstone Church   Rick Bostrom 00:29:00 

The Power of Love (4 episodes) Rick Larson 02:00:00 

LovePower (2 episodes) Ann Sandell 02:00:00 

Rice Creek Watershed District Meeting  Theresa Stasica 02:58:00 

Monday Motivation With Bukola (5 
episodes) 

Bukola Oriola 04:13:28 

30 New Programs  22:57:34 New Hours 

 
 
 
 
Programs Produced by NMTV Staff 

 

Title Producer Runtime 

Anoka County Board Meeting (12/08/17) T.J. Tronson 00:23:46 

Anoka County Board Meeting (12/19/17) T.J. Tronson 01:18:35 

North Metro Telecomm Mtg (12/20/17) T.J. Tronson 00:14:24 

Centennial Middle School's Candy Land T.J. Tronson 01:00:12 

NMTV News (3 episodes) Danika Peterson/Ben Hayle 01:17:44 

Your City Staff: Mark Statz Danika Peterson/Ben Hayle 00:04:50 

Your City Staff: Chief Brian Podany Danika Peterson/Ben Hayle 00:04:38 

Lexington Mayor's Minutes Winter 2017 Trevor Scholl 00:05:35 



Title cont. Producer cont. Runtime cont. 

Blaine's Mayor's Minutes Winter 2017 Trevor Scholl 00:06:02 

School Spotlight Circle Pines and 
Centennial 

Trevor Scholl 00:11:28 

Centerville's Mayor's Minutes Winter 2017 Trevor Scholl 00:06:50 

Lino Lakes Fire Recruitment Video Trevor Scholl 00:06:07 

Boys Hockey: Spring Lake Park/Blaine Kenton Kipp/J. Millington 01:59:38 

Girls Basketball: Centennial/Blaine Kenton Kipp/J. Millington 01:15:26 

Girls Hockey: Blaine/Centennial Kenton KIpp/J. Millington 01:44:24 

Boys Hockey: Blaine/Centennial Kenton Kipp/J. Millington 02:13:48 

Boys Basketball: Blaine/Centennial Kenton Kipp/J. Millington 01:32:13 

Coach & Captains: Centennial Football Kenton Kipp/J. Millington 00:03:02 

Coach & Captains: Blaine  Boys Hockey Kenton Kipp/J. Millington 00:03:41 

Coach & Captains: Spring Lake Park Girls 
Basketball 

Kenton Kipp/J. Millington 00:03:35 

Coach & Captains: Spring Lake Park Boys 
Basketball 

Kenton Kipp/J. Millington 00:02:35 

Coach & Captains: Blaine Girls Basketball Kenton Kipp/J. Millington 00:03:44 

Coach & Captains: Spring Lake 
Park/Irondale Gymnastics 

Kenton Kipp/J. Millington 00:03:07 

Coach & Captains: Centennial Boys 
Basketball 

Kenton Kipp/J. Millington 00:03:18 

Coach & Captains: Blaine Boys Basketball Kenton Kipp/J. Millington 00:03:18 

Coach & Captains: Centennial Girls 
Basketball 

Kenton Kipp/J. Millington 00:03:51 

Sports Den (2 episodes) Kenton Kipp/J. Millington 00:58:59 

30 New Programs  15:14:55 New Hours 

 
 
 
 
 
Programs Produced by City Staff 

 
Title Producer Runtime 

Blaine City Council Meeting (12/7/17) Blaine Staff 02:28:37 

Blaine Planning Commission Meeting 
(12/12/17) 

Blaine Staff 00:13:36 

Blaine Truth In Taxation Meeting 
(12/14/17) 

Blaine Staff 01:07:08 

Blaine Natural Resources Conservation 
Board Meeting (12/19/17) 

Blaine Staff 00:32:59 

Blaine City Council Meeting (12/21/17) Blaine Staff 01:54:32 

Centerville City Council Meeting 
(12/13/17) 

Centerville Staff 02:11:26 

Circle Pines City Council Meeting 
(12/12/17) 

Circle Pines Staff 01:19:00 

Circle Pines Planning Commission 
Meeting (12/18/17) 

Circle Pines Staff 01:08:19 

Circle Pines Utility Commission Meeting 
(12/20/17) 

Circle Pines Staff 00:32:17 

Circle Pines City Council Meeting 
(12/26/17) 

Circle Pines Staff 01:45:17 

Ham Lake City Council Meeting (12/4/17) Ham Lake Staff 00:48:00 

Ham Lake City Council Meeting 
(12/18/17) 

Ham Lake Staff 00:23:42 

Lexington City Council Meeting (12/7/17) Lexington Staff 00:32:48 

Lexington City Council Meeting 
(12/21/17) 

Lexington Staff 00:54:47 

Lino Lakes City Council Meeting 
(12/11/17) 

Lino Lakes Staff 02:08:29 

Spring Lake Park City Council Meeting 
(12/4/17) 

Spring Lake Park Staff 01:08:57 

Spring Lake Park City Council Meeting Spring Lake Park Staff 01:03:32 



(12/18/17) 

17 New Programs  20:10:26  New Hours 

 

If you have any questions or comments regarding this monthly report please contact 

Heidi Arnson at 763.231.2801 or harnson@northmetrotv.com. 
























	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Consent - Statement of Fund Balance - December 2017.pdf
	Dec 2017 FINAL

	Blank Page
	Consent - Budget to Date.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Consent - Resolution 18-1 Authorizing Fund Closures and Transfers.pdf
	Blank Page

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Consent - Contractors Licenses Massage Therapy.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Ord & Reso - Resolution Approving Final Plat for Hy-Vee.pdf
	Blank Page

	New Business - Consideration of Liquor License Application for Sota Tap House & Grill LLC.pdf
	Blank Page

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	New Business - Approval of Utility and Sidewalk Access and Maintenance Agreement.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Correspondence - NMTV City Update.pdf
	Some projects that Trevor is working on or is scheduled to produce include:

	Blank Page
	Correspondence - NMTV Update.pdf
	NMTV News Highlights
	Candy Land
	T.J. Tronson recorded the Centennial Middel School's performance of Candy Land in December. He recorded the play with several cameras and then edited the the final product. We can't put the plays on our channels due to copyright issues, but we do record them for the school and  make copies available for students and parents.  
	Meet Your City Staff
	City HD Upgrade Update
	City Productions
	Production equipment consulting for cities and schools 

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Consent - Dedicate Terrace East Ballfield in honor of Don Busch.pdf
	Blank Page

	Blank Page
	Blank Page



